
APPENDIX 4E
PRELIMINARY FINAL REPORT
RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKET

DETAILS OF THE REPORTING PERIOD AND THE PREVIOUS CORRESPONDING REPORTING PERIOD
Reporting period: For the year ended 31 December 2022

Previous corresponding period: For the year ended 31 December 2021

RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKET
In accordance with the ASX Listing Rule 4.3A, the Board and management of oOh!media Limited have enclosed an Appendix 4E 
for the year ended 31 December 2022. 

Change 2022 2021
  % $’000 $’000

Revenues from ordinary activities(1) Increased 17.6% 592,623 503,734

Net Profit / (Loss) from ordinary activities after income tax attributable to members(1) Increased 406.3% 31,516 (10,288)

Net Profit / (Loss) for the period attributable to the members(1) Increased 406.3% 31,516 (10,288)

EBITDA - Statutory(1) and (2) Increased 19.9% 288,055 240,281

EBITDA - Underlying(1), (2) and (3) Increased 21.0% 285,919 236,255

Adjusted Underlying EBITDA(1), (2), (3) and (4) Increased 63.9% 127,096 77,553

(1) All the above comparisons are on a statutory basis unless otherwise stated.

(2) Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) is non-IFRS measure. This is included in management reports reviewed by the Group’s 
chief operating decision maker (the Board) 

(3) The Directors believe that the Underlying presentation of results is a better indicator of performance and differs from the statutory presentation. The Underlying 
results exclude the impact of integration related costs and other items. Refer to Note 4 – Operating segments, of the condensed consolidated financial 
statements for a reconciliation between statutory and underlying EBITDA.

(4) The Adjusted Underlying EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2022 does not include fixed rent costs due to the implementation of AASB16. This is 
accounted for as depreciation of the right of use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities. The Board and executive management monitor the Adjusted 
Underlying EBITDA.

Refer to Operating and Financial Review in the Directors’ Report for discussion of the results. 

Dividend information
Amount per 

share (cents)

Franked 
amount per 

share (cents)

Tax rate for 
franking 

credit

Current period

Final 2022 dividend (declared after balance date) 3.0 3.0 30%

Interim 2022 dividend (paid on 23 September 2022) 1.5 1.5 30%

Previous period

Final 2021 dividend (paid 24 March 2022) 1.0 1.0 30%

No dividends were paid in 2021 in respect of the Final 2020 or Interim 2021 periods

oOh!media Limited and its 
Controlled Entities (the Group)
ACN 602 195 380



Final 2022 dividend dates

Ex-dividend date 1 March 2023

Record date 2 March 2023

Payment date 23 March 2023

Earnings per share 2022 2021

Basic earnings / (loss) per share (cents) 5.29 (1.72)

Diluted earnings / (loss) per share (cents) 5.25 (1.72)

Net tangible assets 2022 2021

Net tangible assets per security (dollars)(a) (c) 0.10 0.06

Net assets per security (dollars)(b) 1.39 1.34

(a) Derived by dividing the net assets less intangible assets, calculated on total issued shares of 581,083,960 (2021: 598,645,873 shares). 

(b) Derived by dividing the net assets, calculated on total issued shares of 581,083,960 (2021: 598,645,873 shares). 

(c) As a result of the IFRS Interpretation Committee (IC) agenda decision, the Group has changed its accounting policy, retrospectively adjusting the deferred 
tax accounting for configuration or customisation costs in a cloud computing arrangement. 

COMMENTARY ON RESULTS FOR THE PERIOD
Commentary in relation to operating performance, earnings per share, segment results, returns to shareholders and trends 
in performance can be found in the attached Annual Financial Report, which includes the Directors’ Report (predominately 
the Operating and Financial Review Section) and the consolidated financial statements.

DETAILS OF ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE ENTITIES
The Group reduced its interest in Calibre Audience Measurement Limited from 50% to 33.3% on 6 June 2022.

AUDIT QUALIFICATION OR REVIEW
The consolidated financial statements have been audited and an unqualified opinion has been issued which is included in the 
Annual Financial Report.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
For additional information required under ASX Listing Rule 4.3A, please refer to the attached Annual Financial Report for the year 
ended 31 December 2022 of oOh!media Limited and its controlled entities.
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Operating 
and Financial 
Review

Strong operational 
leverage delivers 
improved earnings 
and margins while 
financial position 
remains robust
For the year ended 31 December 2022 
(“CY22”) Out of Home demonstrated a 
strong recovery to CY19 revenue levels 
fuelled by innovation and an expanding 
membership base and continues to take 
share from traditional media. The Out of 
Home Industry captured 12.4% of agency 
media spend in CY22 per the Standard 
Media Index (SMI), an increase on 10.9% 
share on CY21, with the sector taking 
13.7% in Q4. 

Driven by Road, Retail and the 
strengthening of Fly, oOh! delivered 
an 18% increase in revenue over 
the prior year to $592.6 million.

Revenue in Road and Retail grew 
above pre-pandemic (CY19) levels 
while second half revenue in the 
Fly format grew strongly versus both 
the first half and the prior year as airline 
capacity continued to increase.

oOh! maintains strong operating 
leverage and grew earnings faster than 
revenue with adjusted underlying EBITDA1 

up 64% and reported EBITDA increasing 
by 20% on CY21. 

The Group’s continued disciplined focus 
on operational expenditure, together 
with operational leverage as outlined 
above, resulted in a significant lift in the 
adjusted underlying EBITDA margin from 
15.4% to 21.4%.

The Group delivered a 343% increase 
in adjusted NPAT2 to $56.2 million, and an 
increase in statutory NPAT of $41.8 million 
to $31.5 million, from a net loss after tax 
of $10.3 million in the prior year.

The Group’s financial position 
remains strong which enabled the 
implementation of the Company’s 
on-market share buyback and increased 
dividends to shareholders. 

Note: All references are on Page 7
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18%
INCREASE IN REVENUE

343%

64%
INCREASE IN ADJUSTED 

UNDERLYING EBITDA

INCREASE IN 
ADJUSTED NPAT

The Company bought back 17.6 million 
shares (approximately 3% of issued 
capital) during the reporting period 
and declared a final dividend of 3.0 cents 
per share, bringing the full year dividend 
to 4.5 cents per share, fully franked. 

Net debt at 31 December 2022 was 
$32.9 million while the Company 
remains conservatively geared with 
a leverage ratio of 0.3 times (net debt 
/ Adjusted EBITDA) as at 31 December 
2022, compared to 0.8 times at 
31 December 2021.   

As the market leader across Australia/
New Zealand, oOh! remains uniquely 
positioned to capitalise on the growth 
of Out of Home as advertisers continue 
to increase their investment and leverage 
this format to target audience growth.

The Group’s strategy also remains 
focused on revenue enhancing initiatives 
through leveraging its portfolio of existing 
assets to deliver results for advertisers 
with continued investments in digital and 
data capabilities to improve advertisers’ 
return on investment.
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GROUP FINANCIAL RESULTS

A$m unless specified CY22 CY21 Variance ($) Variance (%)

Revenue 592.6 503.7 88.9 18%

Gross profit 422.8 370.3 52.5 14%

Gross profit margin (%) 71.3% 73.5% (2.2 ppts)

Total operating expenditure (136.9) (134.1) (2.7) (2%)

Underlying EBITDA 285.9 236.3 49.7 21%

Other income & non-operating items 2.1 4.0 (1.9) 47%

EBITDA 288.1 240.3 47.8 20%

EBITDA margin (%) 48.6% 47.7% 0.9 ppts

Depreciation and amortisation (200.7) (209.1) 8.4 4%

EBIT 87.4 31.2 56.2 180%

Net finance costs (41.2) (46.7) 5.4 12%

Profit / (loss) before tax 46.2 (15.5) 61.7 397%

Income tax (expense) / benefit (14.6) 5.3 (19.9) 378%

Net profit / (loss) after tax 31.5 (10.3) 41.8 406%

EPS (cps) 5.3 (1.7) 7.1 411%

Adjusted underlying EBITDA3 127.1 77.6 49.6 64%

Adjusted EBITDA margin (%) 21.4% 15.4% 6.1 ppts

Adjusted EBITDA 127.1 81.3 45.8 56%

Adjusted NPAT 56.2 12.7 43.5 343%

REVENUE INCREASED 18%
Out of Home audiences grew strongly compared to the prior year which included the impact of COVID-19 related shutdowns 
in the second half of CY21. Road’s performance as outlined below demonstrates the structural growth opportunity of Out of Home 
compared to traditional media. The OMA reported net revenue growth of 28% on the prior comparative period, with the Out 
of Home industry reaching $1 billion in revenue in line with the 2019 industry performance. The Group’s revenue for CY22 was 
91% of CY19.

The prior year included revenue associated with the Sydney Trains contract (contract not renewed in CY22) and also from Junkee Media 
(divested in December 2021). Excluding revenue from Sydney Trains and Junkee, Group revenue increased by 21% on the prior year.

REVENUE BY FORMAT

A$m unless specified CY22 CY21 Variance ($) Variance (%)

Street Furniture and Rail 196.5 182.1 14.4 8%

Road 191.1 158.5 32.6 21%

Retail 142.9 125.0 17.9 14%

Fly 33.8 12.2 21.6 176%

Locate 17.4 11.8 5.6 47%

Other 10.8 14.1 (3.3) (23%)

Total 592.6 503.7 88.9 18%
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STREET FURNITURE AND RAIL 
Revenue in Street Furniture and Rail increased by 8% to $196.5 million with the prior year including revenue of circa 
$9 million from the Sydney Trains contract (not included in CY22). On a like for like basis (excluding the Sydney Trains 
contract) revenue for street furniture and rail increased by 14%.

Revenue in Street Furniture was impacted by the introduction of a competitor’s significantly expanded City of Sydney 
offering in the second half, as was expected, and the company expects that the advertising market will adjust 
to accommodate the expanded breadth of this category during 2023.   

Revenue in Rail improved on 2022 but continued to be impacted by passenger declines in key stations in Melbourne 
compared to 2019.

ROAD
The Group’s Road (billboard) division maintains its strong performance, continuing its solid result from the prior year. 
Revenue for CY22 increased by 21% to $191.1 million. 

Revenue was also ahead of 2019 levels with CY22 revenue up 30% on CY19 as the Group continues to leverage 
the diversity and scale of its metropolitan and suburban network to deliver results for advertisers.   

oOh! added 31 digital locations to its metropolitan and regional roadside billboard portfolio during the period 
and now has over 200 large format digital signs across Australia.

RETAIL
Revenue in the Retail format increased by 14% to $142.9 million compared to the prior year.  

Revenue was also ahead of 2019 levels with CY22 revenue up 3% on CY19. Revenue growth continued the 
momentum from the first half as advertisers continue to leverage the format to promote brands and products 
/ services within oOh!’s leading retail portfolio. The Retail category continues to grow within the OOH industry 
with the retail/lifestyle category in the OMA up by 3% on 2019 levels.

oOh! expanded its Retail digital footprint by adding 240 new digital panels to over 40 new and upgraded centres.

FLY 
The continued recovery in air travel reflected strong revenue growth in the Fly category which increased by 
176% to $33.8 million on the prior year. Momentum continued during the year as passengers returned with H2 CY22 
revenue increasing by 78% on the first half, and the business launched into the Qantas Chairmen’s Lounge network 
during the second half.

LOCATE
Revenue in Locate increased by 47% to $17.4 million. While revenue recovery compared to pre-pandemic 
levels continues to be impacted by the slow return of audiences to Central Business District office environments, 
the Locate segment predominantly has a variable rent profile which ensures it continues to be a highly valuable 
segment for oOh!.

OTHER 
The Other category primarily includes revenue from the Cactus Imaging business. Other Revenue for the prior 
year included revenue for Junkee Media’s digital publishing business that was divested to the RACAT Group 
(Scout Publishing) in December 2021.
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BALANCED PORTFOLIO 
oOh!media continues to maintain a balanced and diverse lease maturity profile. Approximately 58% of CY22 revenue by concession 
is attached to contracts that expire beyond 2024. Approximately 32% of the revenue base is either rolling or due for renewal in 2023. 

Meanwhile the Company also remains focused on digital and data-led innovation in the sector with continued digitisation of 
assets in premium locations across its network. Digital revenue as a percentage of total revenue in CY22 was 64%, ahead of the 
57% for the prior year.

EARNINGS COMMENTARY – COST DISCIPLINE AND OPERATIONAL LEVERAGE DELIVERS 
SIGNIFICANT IMPROVEMENT IN EBITDA MARGIN 
Unless specified, the commentary below relates to statutory results in respect of CY22 and the prior year (CY21).

The 18% increase in revenue translated to a statutory gross profit of $422.8 million, up 14% on the prior year. Gross profit margin 
in CY22 was 71.3% compared to 73.5% for the prior year. Gross profit on an adjusted basis increased by $52.0 million to $274.0 million4 
representing a gross margin of 46.2% (an increase of 2.2 ppts).

Net rental abatements received in CY22 were $10.2 million5, 72% below the prior year, and contained mainly within the Fly and 
Rail formats. 

Within an inflationary environment, oOh! remains disciplined on operational expenditure which increased by 2.0% on the prior year 
to $136.9 million on a statutory basis. The divestment of Junkee Media resulted in a saving of $4.2 million of operating costs on CY21. 
Adjusting for this disposal, inflation increased the operating cost base by $4.3 million or 3.0%. Travel and entertainment increased by 
$2.2 million as activity picked up following the pandemic restrictions easing. Operating expenditure on an adjusted basis increased 
by 1.7% to $146.9 million6.

EBITDA increased by 20% to $288.1 million, being slightly ahead of the increase in revenue. 

Earnings were also assisted by mix enhancement with the continued strong performance of the higher-margin Road format.  
Road revenue increased from 31.5% of oOh! revenue in CY21 to 32.2% in CY22.

Adjusted underlying EBITDA was $127.1 million, an increase of 64% on the prior year, reflecting the Group’s continued operating 
leverage to audience growth and ability to generate earnings growth at a faster rate than revenue.

The Group’s continued disciplined focus on operational expenditure, together with operational leverage to increasing revenue 
resulted in a significant lift in the adjusted underlying EBITDA margin from 15.4% to 21.4%.

There were no non-operating items for CY22 while CY21 included $3.7 million in non-operating items relating to the disposal of 
Junkee’s digital publishing business and net proceeds related to the reclamation of some sites required for the Sydney Airport 
Gateway project. 

Depreciation and amortisation was $8.4 million lower than the prior year, reflecting the accelerated depreciation in CY21 relating 
to Sydney Trains assets, and lower capital expenditure in recent reporting periods compared to prior the COVID-19 pandemic, 
which is expected to return towards pre-COVID-19 levels in future years.

Net finance costs reduced by 12% to $41.2 million, primarily reflecting lower average net debt as the Group’s financial position 
continued to strengthen during the period. The Group reported a benefit of $2.4 million as its interest rate derivatives benefitted 
from rising interest rates in the second half.

The Group reported a statutory net profit after tax of $31.5 million compared to a statutory net loss after tax of $10.3 million 
for the prior year.

Adjusted net profit after tax was $56.2 million compared to adjusted net profit after tax of $12.7 million for the prior year.

FULL YEAR DIVIDEND UP 350% FULLY FRANKED
The Group’s policy is to pay dividends 40-60 per cent of adjusted net profit after tax. 

For CY22 adjusted net profit was $56.2 million. The Board declared a final dividend of 3.0 cents per share, fully franked, bringing 
the full year dividend to 4.5 cents per share, fully franked. This represents a 47% payout ratio. 

The record date for entitlement to receive the final dividend is 2 March 2023 with a scheduled payment date of 23 March 2023.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
On 22 August 2022 the Group announced an on-market buyback of up to 10% of its issued share capital, circa $75 million, based 
on the strength of its balance sheet and expected future cash flow generation. During the period the Group bought back 17.6 million 
shares for a total of $22 million, representing approximately 3 per cent of issued capital. The buyback programme remains active.
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CONTINUED STRONG CASHFLOW GENERATION

A$m unless specified CY22 CY21 Variance ($) Variance (%)

Adjusted EBITDA 127.1 81.3 45.8 56%

Net change in working capital and non-cash items (14.9) (0.3) (14.6) 5239%

Interest and income tax (included in net cash from operating activities) (14.7) (16.9) 2.2 (13%)

Net cash from operating activities7 97.5 64.2 33.3 52%

Capital expenditure (27.0) (14.6) (12.4) 85%

Other (1.9) 0.9 (2.8) 306%

Net cash flow before financing and acquisitions8 68.6 50.4 18.2 36%

Capital expenditure for CY22 was $27.0 million and was impacted throughout the year by delays in tenders and renewals, 
and supply chain and weather disruption.

Capital expenditure remains focused on enhancing the Group’s digital OOH capability and oOh! launched 477 new digital sites 
in key locations during the year, including 31 new Road digitals and 21 new and upgraded Retail centres.

Investment decisions will continue to be aligned to revenue growth opportunities and concession renewals and the Group.

FINANCIAL POSITION REMAINS STRONG 

A$m unless specified 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021 Variance ($) Variance (%)

Borrowings 72.9 123.6 (50.7) (41%)

Cash and Cash equivalents 40.0 60.0 (20.0) (33%)

Net Debt 32.9 63.5 (30.7) (48%)

Leverage Ratio (Net Debt/Adjusted EBITDA) 0.3x 0.8x (0.6x) (68%)

The Group’s financial position remains strong with net debt at 31 December 2022 of $32.9 million compared to $63.5 million 
at 31 December 2021.

Credit metrics continued to improve with the Group’s gearing ratio (net debt / Adjusted EBITDA) as at 31 December 2022 of 0.3 times, 
compared 0.8 times at 31 December 2021.   

This gearing ratio excludes the impact of AASB 16 which is not seen as debt for the purposes of applying the banking covenants.

The Group refinanced its debt facilities and extended the maturity date of the facilities to June 2026. Total facilities under the syndicate 
are $350 million with $150 million of interest rate derivatives until October 2025 in place, which were taken out in October 2018.

1. Adjusted underlying EBITDA is EBITDA (earnings before income, taxes, depreciation and amortisation) less any other income components recognised in accordance 
with AASB 16. Adjusted EBITDA excludes non-operating items. Fixed rent obligations for the period under the Group’s commercial leases are included as a deduction 
in adjusted underlying EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA. The Group believes that these measures are a better representation of the underlying economics of the business 
and reflective of its ability to generate cash flows. oOh! believes that most analysts and shareholders analyse the Group on this basis.

2. Adjusted NPAT is statutory NPAT less the depreciation, finance charges and any other income components of AASB 16, and non-operating items. Fixed rent 
obligations for the period under our commercial leases is included as a deduction in adjusted NPAT. Adjusted NPAT also excludes the tax effected amortisation 
expense on acquired intangibles which do not have a cash replacement cost. The Group believes that this is a better representation of the underlying economics 
of the business and reflective of its ability to generate cash flows. The Group’s dividend policy is 40-60% of Adjusted NPAT.

3 . Note 4 in the Consolidated Financial Statements provides a reconciliation between Adjusted Underlying EBITDA and statutory profit before tax.

4. Gross profit on an adjusted basis is statutory gross profit of $422.8 million adjusted for fixed rent obligations relating to cost of media sites and production 
of of $148.7 million. Refer to Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

5. Net rental abatements in CY22 consist of $7.2 million until the practical expedient expired for the half year ended 30 June 2022, per Note 6 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, and a further $3 million for the second half following the expiration of the practical expedient representing the commercial cash saving 
received by oOh!. 

6. Operating expenditure on an adjusted basis is statutory operating expenditure adjusted for the fixed rent obligations relating to other operating expenses 
of $10.1 million. Refer to Note 4 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

7. Net cash from operating activities is statutory net cash generated in operating activities of $222.7 million adjusted for $125.1 million for payment of lease liabilities 
that have been excluded from Adjusted EBITDA.

8. Net cash flow before financing and acquisitions is statutory net decrease in cash of $20.0 million adjusted for $22.2 million for share buyback, $50.0 million 
for repayment of loans and borrowings, $1.4 million for transaction costs related to borrowings and derivatives, and $15.0 million for dividends paid.

7



Tony Faure 
Chair and Non-executive Director

Tony was appointed to the Board of 
oOh!media Limited on 28 November 
2014 and appointed Chair on 22 
September 2017.

Tony was also a Director of the parent 
company of the oOh!media group 
(since February 2014). 

Skills and experience:  
Tony has deep experience in traditional 
and digital media and marketing, having 
run both small and large companies. 
Tony is passionate about ideas that use 
technology to push limits and create 
new experiences for consumers. Tony 
has held the positions of Chief Executive 
Officer of ninemsn and Chief Executive 
Officer and Founder of Home Screen 
Entertainment, and positions at Yahoo! 
including Regional Vice President, South 
Asia and Managing Director of Yahoo! 
Australia and New Zealand. Tony was 
also an advisor to the Board of seek.com. 

Other public directorships  
(current and recent):  
Tony is currently the Chair of ReadyTech 
Holdings (since 2019).

Catherine O’Connor
Chief Executive Officer 
and Managing Director 

Catherine (Cathy) was appointed 
as Chief Executive Officer effective 
1 January 2021 and as Managing 
Director effective 11 January 2021. 

Skills and experience:  
Before joining oOh!media Cathy spent 
12 successful years at the helm of Nova 
Entertainment.

Cathy helped transform Nova into 
a multi-platform entertainment business, 
spending 17 years in total with the 
company. Prior to that she held several 
management roles at Austereo, after 
starting her career in radio advertising 
sales at 2SM and 2GB.

She is leading the strategic evolution of 
oOh!’s business model at a time of rapid 
change, capitalising on the Company’s 
significant investments in data, audience 
insights, content and creative to target 
sustained growth.

Cathy is a Governor of the Cerebral Palsy 
Alliance Research Foundation, Chair 
of the Sony Foundation, and previously 
served on the Commercial Radio 
Australia Board. Her numerous career 
achievements include a Telstra NSW 
Business Women’s Award for the Private 
Sector, a Centenary Medal for Service to 
Australian Society in Business Leadership, 
and induction into the Commercial 
Radio Hall of Fame.

A Graduate of the Institute of Company 
Directors, Cathy also holds a Bachelor 
of Arts in Communications from University 
of Technology Sydney.

David Wiadrowski
Independent Non-executive Director, 
Lead Independent Director and Chair 
of Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee

David was appointed to the Board of 
oOh!media Limited on 29 November 2019 
and was appointed Lead Independent 
Director on 25 February 2020. 

Skills and experience:  
David is an experienced Non-executive 
Director currently serving on three ASX listed 
companies and brings strong commercial 
acumen and skills to the Board. David was a 
partner of PwC for more than 25 years, holding 
a number of leadership roles in Australia 
and overseas including five years as Chief 
Operating Officer of the firm’s largest business 
consisting of 160 partners and 1,800 staff.

Throughout his career at PwC, David 
continually developed deep expertise in the 
technology, entertainment and media sectors. 
He was the lead audit partner for major clients 
including Network Ten, Seven West Media, 
APN News & Media and APN Outdoor.

David holds a Bachelor of Commerce from the 
University of New South Wales, is a Graduate 
of the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors’ and is a Fellow of the Chartered 
Accountants of Australia and New Zealand.

David is a Board member of the Cambodian 
Children’s Fund Australia Limited and Chair 
and Non-executive Director of WageSplitter 
Pty Limited.

In addition to his outstanding financial 
credentials, David brings strong commercial 
acumen to the Board, derived from his 
extensive experience at PwC and his 
board roles.

Other public directorships  
(current and recent):  
David is currently a Non-executive Director 
and Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee 
of Life360 Inc (since 2019) and Non-executive 
Director and Chair of the Audit Committee 
of carsales.com Limited (since 2019).

David was previously a Non-executive Director 
and Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee 
of Vocus Group Limited (2017 – 2021).
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Philippa Kelly 
Independent Non-executive 
Director and Chair of Remuneration 
& Nomination Committee

Philippa was appointed to the 
Board of oOh!media Limited on 
18 September 2019. 

Skills and experience:  
Philippa is an experienced Non-
executive Director across ASX listed, 
private and not-for-profit organisations. 
She has extensive experience across 
property investment and finance, with 
a background in law and investment 
banking. 

Philippa has over 20 years’ experience 
in senior operational and leadership 
roles within the property sector. She was 
formerly Chief Operating Officer of the 
Juilliard Group, one of Melbourne’s 
largest private property owners. 
Previously she was Head of Institutional 
Funds Management of Centro Properties 
Group (now Vicinity Centres),

Philippa holds a Bachelor of Laws from 
University of Western Australia and a 
Graduate Diploma of Applied Finance 
& Investment from Finsia. She is a fellow 
of the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors and Finsia.

Philippa is also an independent Director 
of AustralianSuper and Chair of its 
Investment Committee and a Non-
executive Director of Hub Australia.

Other public directorships  
(current and recent):  
Philippa is currently Chair of Lifestyle 
Communities Limited (ASX:LIC), and was 
Deputy-Chancellor of Deakin University 
until December 2021.

Timothy Miles 
Independent Non-executive Director 
and Chair of Technology Committee

Timothy (Tim) was appointed to the 
Board of oOh!media Limited on 16 May 
2019. 

Skills and experience:  
Based in Auckland, Tim has significant 
experience, both internationally and in 
New Zealand, notably in technology and 
digital development.

Tim has held senior leadership roles 
including as Chief Executive Officer 
of Spark Digital, Managing Director of 
listed agricultural services group PGG 
Wrightson, Chief Executive Officer of 
Vodafone New Zealand and Chief 
Executive of Vodafone UK and Group 
Chief Technology Officer of Vodafone 
plc. Tim has also held senior roles at IBM, 
Data General Corporation and Unisys 
Corp. Tim holds a Bachelor of Arts from 
Victoria University of Wellington.

Tim is currently the Chair of the Gut 
Cancer Foundation and is a Non-
executive Director of Nyriad Inc. 
(previously Nyriad New Zealand, since 
2018).

Other public directorships  
(current and recent):  
Tim is currently a Non-executive Director 
and Chair of HR and Remuneration 
of Genesis (NZE, since 2016).

Tim was formerly the Chair of Centurion 
GSM (a joint venture between Vodafone 
NZ and Millennium Group – ceased 
May 2022).

Andrew Stevens
Independent Non-executive Director

Andrew was appointed to the 
Board of oOh!media Limited on 
25 September 2020.

Skills and experience:  
Andrew was Managing Director 
of IBM Australia and New Zealand 
from 2011 to 2014, having joined 
IBM when the company acquired 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting 
(PwC) and previously holding senior 
roles including Managing Partner, 
Growth Markets for IBM’s Global Business 
Services where he was responsible 
for the performance of the operations 
in Asia Pacific, Latin America, Central 
Europe, the Middle East, and Africa.

Andrew holds a Master of Commerce 
and Bachelor of Commerce from the 
University of New South Wales and 
is a Fellow of Chartered Accountants 
Australia and New Zealand.

Andrew is currently the Chair of Industry 
Innovation and Science Australia and 
Data Standards Chair for the Consumer 
Data Right and Non-executive Director.

Other public directorships  
(current and recent):  
Andrew is currently a Non-executive 
Director of Stockland Group Limited 
(since 2017).
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Joanne Pollard
Independent Non-executive Director

Joanne (Joe) was appointed to 
the Board of oOh!media Limited 
on 24 August 2021. 

Skills and experience:  
Joe has domestic and international 
experience in the telecommunications, 
media, marketing and sports industries. 
Over a 30 year executive career, Joe 
was Group Executive of Media and 
Marketing at Telstra and Chief Executive 
Officer of Ninemsn and Publicis Mojo. 
She spent 10 years at Nike Inc as Global 
Director of Media, Digital and Content 
and then Chief Marketing Officer 
at Nike Japan. She has held various 
leadership roles in sales, media, digital 
and content at Nine Entertainment 
Co. and Mindshare in Australia & Hong 
Kong. Joe is a member of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors and 
Chief Executive Women.

Joe is a director at Greencross Limited 
and a member of its Audit and Risk 
Committee. She is also a director of 
RACAT Group. She was previously a non-
executive director of Nine Entertainment 
Co., AMP Bank Limited, Michelle 
Bridge’s 12WBT, I-Select, the Interactive 
Advertising Bureau and Australian 
Association of National Advertisers.

Other public directorships  
(current and recent):  
Joe is currently a director of Endeavour 
Group (ASX:EDV), Chair of People, 
Culture and Performance Committee 
and member of its Audit, Risk and 
Compliance Committee. She is a 
Non-executive Director of Washington 
H Soul Pattinson (ASX:SOL). 

Marco Hellman 
Non-executive Director  
(Retired 9 April 2022)

Marco (Mick) was appointed to the 
Board of oOh!media Limited on 7 April 
2020. Mick retired as a Director of the 
Company, effective 9 April 2022.

Skills and experience:  
Mick is a Founder, Managing Partner and 
member of the Investment Committee 
of HMI Capital Management, L.P.

Prior to establishing HMI Capital 
Management, L.P, Mick spent most of 
his career at Hellman & Friedman, LLC 
where he was a Managing Director and 
a member of the Investment Committee. 
While at Hellman & Friedman, Mick 
founded the software and logistics 
(ports and container terminals) verticals 
and established the firm’s Hong Kong 
office. He was instrumental in Hellman 
& Friedman’s investments in Blackbaud, 
Inc., Hongkong International Terminals 
Limited and Mitchell International, Inc.

Prior to joining Hellman & Friedman in 
1987, Mick worked as a Financial Analyst 
at Salomon Brothers Inc. in San Francisco 
in the Corporate Finance Department.

Mick is on the Board of a number of 
Not-For-Profit organisations, including 
San Francisco Jazz Organisation, 
USA Cycling Foundation and HSB LLC.

Other public directorships  
(current and recent):  
Mick was formerly a Director of LPL 
Financial Holdings Inc. (NASDAQ,  
2016 – 2018)

Maria Polczynski
Company Secretary

Maria is General Counsel and has 
over 30 years’ legal and leadership 
experience including as the senior legal 
officer of Bendigo and Adelaide Bank 
and partner of Sydney-based law firm, 
Henry Davis York (now part of Norton 
Rose Fulbright). Maria holds a Bachelor 
of Jurisprudence/Bachelor of Laws 
from the University of New South Wales 
and a Master of Laws from University 
of Technology Sydney.
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INTRODUCTION
The Directors of oOh!media Limited 
(oOh!media or the Company) present 
their report of oOh!media Limited and 
its controlled entities for the year ended 
31 December 2022.

The Directors and Company Secretary 
who held office at any time during or 
since the end of the financial year ended 
31 December 2022, together with their 
qualifications, experience and further 
details, are set out on the previous 
pages, which form part of this report.

The Directors’ Report has been prepared 
in accordance with the requirements 
of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth). 
The information below forms part of this 
Directors’ Report.

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
oOh!media Limited is a public company 
limited by shares that is incorporated 
and domiciled in Australia and listed 
on the Australian Securities Exchange.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
oOh!media is a leading Out of Home 
media company, offering advertisers 
the ability to create deep engagement 
between people and brands across 
one of the largest and most diverse 
Out of Home location-based portfolios 
in Australia and New Zealand. 
oOh!media’s portfolio includes: 

• large format digital and classic 
roadside screens;

• large and small format digital and 
classic signs located in retail precincts 
such as shopping centres;

• large and small format digital and 
classic signs in airport terminals, 
lounges and in-flight;

• digital and classic street furniture signs;

• digital and classic format advertising 
in public transport corridors including 
rail; and

• digital and classic signs in high dwell 
time environments such as universities 
and office buildings.

oOh!media also provides advertising 
creative and printing services.

OPERATING & 
FINANCIAL REVIEW
The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable 
to the owners of the parent entity for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2022 
was $31,516,000 (2021: $(10,288,000)).

A review of operations and results 
of the Group for the year ended 
31 December 2022 is set out in the 
Operating and Financial Review, 
which forms part of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES  
IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS
Chris Roberts became the new Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company 
from 1 August 2022, when Sheila Lines’ 
resignation from that role became 
effective. Sheila consulted with the 
Company for two further months before 
leaving on 30 September 2022.

There have been no other significant 
changes in the state of affairs of the 
Company during CY22.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS 
& EXPECTED RESULTS
The Group’s prospects and strategic 
direction are discussed in various sections 
of this Report. Further information about 
likely developments in the operations 
of the Group and the expected results 
of those operations in future financial 
years has not been included in this Report 
because disclosure of the information 
would be likely to result in prejudice 
to the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT

GOVERNANCE
The Company pro-actively manages risks 
such as strategic risk, operational risk, 
governance and compliance risk and 
financial risk. The Board has mechanisms 
in place to ensure management’s 
objectives and activities are consistent 
with risk management direction by the 
Board including governance structures 
requiring Board approval of:

• the Group’s strategic plan and 
operational objectives;

• the Group’s policies regarding 
governance, conduct and other risks;

• the Group’s annual financial forecasts 
and operating budgets;

• all contracts and agreements which 
exceed the level of delegation 
to management in the Delegated 
Authority Policy approved by the 
Board; and

• all project developments which 
exceed the level of delegation 
to management in the Delegated 
Authority Policy approved by 
the Board.
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KEY RISKS
The Company considers the following as being the most relevant risks to the business achieving its strategic, 
operational and financial targets:

Business Element Description of risk and the Company’s mitigation

External economic 
conditions

The Company operates in Australia and New Zealand. Several advertiser customers are global 
organisations whose media expenditure decisions can be affected by economic conditions in 
other jurisdictions. A general disruption to or downturn in macroeconomic factors such as consumer 
confidence, or the media industry specifically, may reduce revenues. This may have a significant 
impact on operating profit as a large proportion of the Company’s costs have a fixed component. 
The Company positions its operations to balance the opportunity of delivering outcomes 
for investors from stronger economic conditions as well as mitigating the impact of economic 
downturns given the cyclical nature of the media market. The Company maintains a portfolio 
of assets which is diversified across several Out of Home segments and across central business 
district, transport, metropolitan (including suburban) and regional areas in Australia and New 
Zealand. A significant proportion of arrangements with commercial partners include rent that varies 
with revenue in a period. The Company maintains debt financing facilities with liquidity headroom 
above expected operational needs.

Shifting audience patterns Out of Home audiences were impacted by mandatory stay at home orders / restricted movement 
orders by governments in Australia and New Zealand during 2020 and 2021 as a  result of the 
COVID-19 pandemic. This has led to an increase in working from home versus traveling to the office, 
supported by advancements in virtual meeting technology. Given the concentration of assets in 
CBD areas and particularly in office and rail environments – an elongation of working from home 
patterns will impact Out of Home audiences and revenues in the office and rail environment in 
particular versus the pre COVID-19 environment. The Company’s diversity of its assets into suburban 
and regional areas is a partial mitigant to this risk.

Meeting the evolving 
needs of advertisers

Growth in Out of Home advertising will be dependent on oOh!media’s continued ability to adapt 
to changes in the media landscape, including meeting evolving customer advertising requirements 
and competitive and legislative changes. The Board oversees key changes in the media 
landscape and the appropriateness of management’s response to such changes. oOh!media 
has developed a diversified portfolio to mitigate this risk, with diversity and scale across a number 
of different environments that deliver return on investment for advertisers. oOh!media has also 
invested in audience data, verification, scalable systems and operating models to manage this 
risk into the future.

Business partners oOh!media is dependent on concession contracts with commercial partners to maintain and 
manage its lease and licence portfolio, media agencies to represent this portfolio to their 
advertiser clients, and customers who desire the portfolio to advertise their goods and services. 
Many concession contracts require oOh!media to participate in competitive processes ahead 
of or at each renewal. Loss or weakening of relationships with media agencies, a change in the size 
or structure of the media agency market, or loss of relationships with key customers could impact 
the Group’s future operating and business performance. oOh!media has developed a diversified 
portfolio of relationships with numerous individual commercial partners and with different contract 
maturity dates to mitigate the impact of losing individual concession contracts, and has invested 
in data and insights to give agencies and customers more focus and reach for their desired 
audience using oOh!media’s unique portfolio.
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Business Element Description of risk and the Company’s mitigation

Business Continuity oOh!media’s ability to continue normal business operations may be adversely affected by 
a range of external and internal risks, including but not limited to: inability of employees to 
access key technology operating systems, access by employees to maintain, post and clean 
physical advertising assets across Australia and New Zealand and severe widespread reductions 
in audiences for oOh!media’s advertising assets across Australia and New Zealand resulting 
in a significant short term loss of revenue, as occurred in CY20 and CY21 due to COVID-19 
pandemic government restrictions on public movement. oOh!media has deployed resources 
and strategies to mitigate specific risks: Work, health, safety and environmental (WHSE), IT and 
Cyber Security, Regulatory and Governance, all of which could give rise to a Business Continuity 
risk – refer to specific risk sections in this report. The Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee of the 
Board annually reviews oOh!media’s Business Continuity plans. The Company’s advertising assets 
are diversified across numerous environments (road, airports, street furniture, shopping centres, 
rail), geographically diverse locations across Australia and New Zealand and the majority of 
oOh!media’s revenues are from national advertisers who use multiple audience environments. 
As a result, oOh!media has limited business continuity concentration risk for localised advertising 
assets. Business continuity risk could arise as a result of widespread sustained impact to assets 
and audiences. The Company maintains debt financing facilities with liquidity headroom above 
expected operational needs, operates with rent structures which include a significant element 
of rent which varies with revenue and in certain key commercial arrangements fixed rent relief 
in the event of a pandemic.

Acquisitions & integration Acquisitions may not deliver projected benefits or value, and integrations may not be successful, 
resulting in interruptions to the achievement of business strategy. oOh!media has deep experience 
managing business integrations and where appropriate, appoints full time project managers to 
assist with the management and delivery of integration programs. As required, oOh!media regularly 
reports against the performance of the integration and the new business to the Board.

Regulatory & GovernanceRegulatory & Governance Description of risk and the Company’s mitigationDescription of risk and the Company’s mitigation

Regulatory The Group operates in an industry which is subject to specific regulatory risk, planning development 
regulations for deployment of the Group’s assets and regulatory changes with respect to 
advertising content on the Group’s assets. oOh!media engages proactively with regulatory 
and industry bodies regarding development of regulation and in ensuring compliance by the 
Group’s activities.

Governance The Group recognises stakeholder expectations regarding governance for an enterprise of its 
scale and operating as a publicly listed entity. A significant failure to meet expected standards 
of governance would impact the reputation and business outcomes for the Group. oOh!media 
engages professional in-house and where required, external, governance experts to assist its 
corporate, finance, legal and operations functions to provide advice and support, and to manage 
and review governance processes and systems.

ESG Expectations from advertisers, governments, landlords, employees, shareholders and other 
stakeholders with regards to the Company’s ESG profile continue to evolve. The Company formally 
established an ESG function in 2022 and is building out the broader understanding and capabilities 
in this area through a mix of internal appointments and specialist consulting services.
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IT & CybersecurityIT & Cybersecurity Description of risk and the Company’s mitigationDescription of risk and the Company’s mitigation

IT security & resilience Failure to appropriately address security risks around external threats to the digital network, 
IT systems and data (including personal information) could result in system suspension, loss of 
control or failure, the potential loss of intellectual property or a personal information data breach. 
oOh!media has developed a Cyber Security Strategy and processes. Activities in relation to 
managing Cyber Security risk are overseen by a Cyber Security Steering Committee comprising 
of executives leading the operational functions in addition to the IT executive leadership. 
Cyber risk management activities are reported regularly to the Board and its Committees, 
including the Technology Committee. The business does not acquire nor retain private information 
of individuals other than employees.

People & CapabilityPeople & Capability Description of risk and the Company’s mitigationDescription of risk and the Company’s mitigation

WHSE Work, health, safety and environmental (WHSE) risks could occur causing physical injury or death 
to employees or others, damage to property or the environment, damage to reputation and 
involve regulatory breach. oOh!media has a dedicated Wellbeing, Safety and Environment 
function, complemented by a management system that is rigorously enforced. This team 
conducts quality assurance on providers to ensure compliance with policies, induction, licensing 
requirements, insurance and WHS policies. oOh!media has a Group-wide induction and new 
site training program for workplace, health and emergency measures and conducts third party 
independent audits of its work, health & safety and environmental systems to identify any areas 
for continuous improvement. Strategy and processes, policies and activities in relation to managing 
WHSE are overseen by a WHSE Steering Committee comprising of executives leading operational 
functions across the Group. WHSE risk management activities and all incidents are reported to 
and considered regularly by the Board.

Culture, employee 
retention & succession

The Company has a vibrant and entrepreneurial culture which embraces colleagues as individuals 
as well as contributors. This culture has enabled the Company to grow to be the largest Out 
of Home operator in Australia and New Zealand and was the foundation of the Company’s 
successful response to the risks which eventuated with the COVID-19 pandemic. Business structure 
and employee capability may not continue to evolve to meet the growing changes and 
complexity in the products, market, agencies and emerging digital environment. This failure may 
negatively impact the innovative and entrepreneurial culture of the Company and the ongoing 
relevance and performance of oOh!media within the market. As the business evolves, structure, 
culture and capability is carefully assessed to ensure it aligns to the business strategy and has 
the agility to adapt to new favourable opportunities. oOh!media has Group-wide onboarding 
and subsequent structured and on the job learning programs, an informal mentoring program, 
and recognition programs beyond remuneration. The Remuneration & Nomination Committee 
of the Board works closely with the CEO and Chief People & Culture Officer on the design 
and implementation of the Company’s culture programs, reviewing results and the Company’s 
response and action to regular culture surveys.

Employee retention and succession planning enables the Group’s consistent performance 
and delivery of its strategy and competitive success. Significant loss of employees and particular 
capabilities over a short period could impact the Company’s ability to operate effectively 
or achieve its revenue targets. oOh!media undertakes short-term and long-term succession 
and organisational planning for key roles. Retention and succession activities and outcomes 
are regularly reviewed by the Board.
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MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE
Since the end of the financial year, and after the approval of these consolidated financial statements, the Board has declared 
a fully franked dividend of 3.0 cents per ordinary share, amounting to $17,433,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 
(31 December 2021: $5,986,000). This dividend is payable on 23 March 2023. The financial effect of this dividend has not been brought 
to account in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 and will be recognised in subsequent 
financial reports. 

No other matter or circumstance at the date of this Report has arisen since 31 December 2022 that has significantly affected 
or may affect: 

• the operations of the Group in future financial years;

• the results of those operations in future financial years; or

• the Group’s state of affairs in future financial years.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION
The operations of the consolidated entity are not subject to any particular or significant environmental regulation under the law 
of the Commonwealth of Australia or any of its states or territories, or New Zealand. The Group has not incurred any significant 
environmental liabilities.

For further information see the Sustainability Report.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY
No proceedings have been brought on behalf of the Group, nor have any applications been made in respect of the Group under 
section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS
ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191 (Instrument) issued by the Australian Securities 
and Investments Commission (ASIC), relating to the “rounding off” of amounts in the Directors’ Report applies to the Company.

Amounts in the Directors’ Report have been rounded off in accordance with the Instrument to the nearest thousand dollars, 
or in certain cases, to the nearest dollar, unless otherwise stated.
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DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS
The record below shows the number of directors’ meetings held during the year, the number of meetings the directors were eligible 
to attend and the number of meetings attended.

Director Board Meetings
Audit, Risk &  
Compliance

Remuneration &  
Nomination Committee

Technology  
Committee

H A H A H A H A

Total meetings 14 4 6 3

Tony Faure 14 14

Mick Hellmana 5 3 2 2

Philippa Kelly 14 14 6 6 3 3

Timothy Miles 14 13 4 4 3 3

Cathy O’Connor 14 14

Joe Pollard 14 14 6 6

Andrew Stevens 14 13 4 4 3 3

David Wiadrowski 14 14 4 4 4 4

H – number of meetings held during the period the Director was a member of the Board/Committee.

A – number of meetings attended by the Director during the period the Director was a member of the Board/Committee. 

a. Not a Board member for all of CY22. For times of Board appointment, see Board of Directors on page 10. 

In addition, Board sub-committees were convened from time to time during the period to support the Board in execution 
of its responsibilities.

BOARD SKILLS, EXPERIENCE & DIVERSITY
The Board, together with the Remuneration & Nomination Committee, reviews the skills, experience and diversity represented 
by Directors on the Board and determines whether the composition and mix of these factors remain appropriate for the Company’s 
strategy, subject to limits imposed by the Constitution and the terms served by existing Non-executive Directors.

The results of the 2022 self-assessment of the Directors’ skills and experience are shown on the matrix below. The results represent 
those Directors who confirmed their expertise or experience in the relevant area.

The Board has an average tenure of 3 years and 7 months1, representing a good balance of deep corporate knowledge and 
new perspectives. From April 2022, the Board has had a male:female ratio of 4:32. This represents 42.8% women Directors, in excess 
of the minimum 30% recommended by the ASX Corporate Governance Council for ASX 300 companies.

We are confident the current Board composition provides a strong combination of skills, experience and diversity to allow oOh!media 
to execute its long-term strategy to drive sustainable growth and maximise shareholder value.

Note: The matrix below shows the Board skills composition at the date of this Report.

1. This reflects Non-executive Director tenure only, as at 31 December 2022.

2. This is inclusive of the Managing Director/CEO.
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Commercial Property & Assets
Experience in commercial property, leasing and asset / 
inventory management, including in multi-site deployments.

Leadership
Successful leadership of a large organisation, including 
executive oversight and governance of a listed company.

Culture & Talent
Experience in overseeing and assessing people, including 
corporate culture, leadership assessment and workforce and 
succession planning and in setting remuneration frameworks 
and executive incentives.

Risk Management 
Experience in risk management and strategy, including 
risk culture and appetite and systematic risk identification, 
assessment, controls and monitoring.

Digital, Technology & Data
Experience in technology strategies, information, data 
security and innovation and in digital media creation, sourcing 
and distribution.

Sales, Marketing, Media & Advertising
Experience in marketing and sales execution within the 
advertising and media sector across traditional and digital 
media channels.

Finance & Capital management
Experience in financial accounting and reporting and debt 
and equity capital management, including investor relations. 
Experience in capital allocation across business operations.

Strategic vision & direction
Experience and acumen in developing, implementing 
and delivering strategic business objectives.

Health, Safety & Sustainability
Experience overseeing and assessing environmental, social and 
workplace health and safety initiatives, including the sustainability 
of relevant processes. Experience monitoring internal and 
external processes, including mental health, physical well-being, 
supply chain, emissions and modern slavery risks. 

Expert
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Culture & Talent

0

2

1

3

4

6

7

5

Sales, Marketing,  
Media & Advertising

Digital,  
Technology  

& Data

Commercial  
Property  
& Assets

Health, Safety  
& Sustainability

Risk  
Management

Finance  
& Capital 

Management

Strategic 
Vision &  
Direction

Leadership

18 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2022

Directors’ Report continued



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
oOh!media’s most recent Corporate Governance Statement is available on oOh!media’s website under https://investors.oohmedia.
com.au/investor-centre/?page=governance.

SHARES ISSUED & EXERCISE OF RIGHTS
Ordinary shares of oOh!media Limited
At 31 December 2022, there were 6,230,659 performance rights on issue (2021: 5,977,854). In 2022, none of the performance rights 
under the Long-Term Incentive Plan vested, therefore no shares were issued. 

The total number of fully paid shares on issue at 31 December 2022 is 581,083,960 (2021: 598,645,873). As announced to the market, 
the Company is undertaking an on-market share buy-back and as a result the number of fully paid shares on issue reduced during 
CY22 and will continue to reduce until the buy-back concludes. 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, RIGHTS AND OPTIONS OF THE COMPANY
The relevant interests of each Director in the equity of the Company and related bodies corporate as at the date of this Directors’ 
Report are disclosed in the Remuneration Report.

SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018b

Adjusted NPAT 56,216 12,689 (8,509)a 52,352 51,056

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company ($’000) 31,516 (10,288) (36,183)a 13,668b 29,124

Basic earnings / (loss) per share (cents) 5.3 (1.7) (7.1)a 5c 14d

Dividends – interim paid and final declared ($’000) 26,368 5,986 Nil 26,566 26,094

Dividends per share – interim paid and final declared (cents) 4.5 1.0 Nil 11.0 11.0

Share price – closing at balance date ($) 1.29 1.69 1.66 3.64 3.42

Free Cash Flow per share (cents per share) 11.5 8.7 16.4 14.5 15.3

Return on invested capital (%) 14.92% 9.12% 6.11% 12.09% 20.77%

a. As a result of the IFRS IC agenda decision – IAS 38 Intangible Assets, the Group has changed its accounting policy, retrospectively adjusting the accounting 
for customisation costs for cloud computing arrangements. Refer to Note 2 of the FY21 Financial Statements.

b. As a result of the IFRS Interpretation Committee (IC) agenda decision, the Group has changed its accounting policy, retrospectively adjusting the deferred 
tax accounting for Brands. Refer to Note 10 of the 2020 Financial Statements.

c.  CY19 basic earnings / (loss) per share have been adjusted to reflect the Group’s capital raising during 2020. Refer to Note 29 of the 2020 Financial Statements.

d. CY18 basic earnings / (loss) per share have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the purchase price allocation accounting for Adshel which was completed in 2019.

Shareholder returns per share reflect:

• the issuance of:

 – 71,709,994 additional fully paid ordinary shares issued in July 2018 to assist in financing the acquisition of the share capital 
of Adshel on 28 September 2018;

 – 315,101,745 additional fully paid ordinary shares issued in April 2020 as part of the equity raising announced on 26 March 2020;

 – 6,857,593 additional fully paid ordinary shares in March 2021 to fulfil obligations under the Company’s employee incentive plans, 
upon 2020 short term incentives being issued as equity rather than cash; and

• the cancellation of 17,561,913 during CY22 as part of the on-market share buy-back. 

Net profit amounts have been calculated in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards. Dividends for CY22 were 
fully franked.
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DIVIDENDS
The following fully franked dividends have been paid to date:

Dividends paid during 2022 Amount per share (cents) Total paid ($)

Final 2021 dividend (paid 24 March 2022) 1  5,986,459

Interim 2022 dividend (paid 22 September 2022) 1.5 8,935,744

Dividends paid during 2021 Amount per share (cents) Total paid ($)

No dividends were paid in 2021 Nil Nil

The Company’s policy is to pay dividends of 40-60 per cent of Adjusted Underlying net profit after tax, as AASB16 does not have 
a cash impact and there is no cash replacement cost for the acquired intangibles. The Board declared a fully franked final 
dividend of 3 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022. This dividend is payable on 23 March 2023. 
The financial effect of this dividend has not been brought to account in the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 
31 December 2022 and will be recognised in subsequent financial reports. The financial effect of this dividend is outlined in Note 34 
of the financial statements.

The Company’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan did not operate for any dividends paid during CY22 and will not operate for the 
Final 2022 dividend. 

INDEMNIFICATION & INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The Company, to the extent permitted by law, indemnifies each Director, alternate Director and Executive Officer of the Company 
on a full indemnity basis against all losses, liabilities, costs, charges and expenses incurred by that person as an Officer of the 
Company or one of its related bodies corporate.

The Company, to the extent permitted by law, may purchase and maintain insurance, or pay, or agree to pay, a premium for 
insurance for each Director, alternate Director and Executive Officer of the Company against any liability incurred by that person 
as an Officer of the Company or its related bodies corporate, including a liability for negligence or for reasonable costs and 
expenses incurred in defending or responding to proceedings, whether civil or criminal and whatever their outcome.

The Company may enter into contracts with a Director or former Director agreeing to provide continuing access to board papers, 
books, records and documents of the Company that relate to the period during which the Director or former Director was a Director. 
The Company may arrange that its related bodies corporate provide similar access to board papers, books, records or documents.

INSURANCE PREMIUMS
The Company has paid insurance premiums in respect of Directors’ and Officers’ Liability insurance for the year ended 31 December 
2022 and since the end of that year. Such insurance contracts insure against certain liability (subject to specific exclusions) of persons 
who are or have been Directors, alternate Directors or Executive Officers of the Company or in that capacity to the extent allowed 
by the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth). The terms of the policies prohibit disclosure of the liability and premium paid.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES
During the year, KPMG, the Company’s auditor, performed certain other services in addition to its statutory duties.

The Board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor, and, in accordance with the advice 
received from the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee, is satisfied that the provision of those non-audit services during the year 
by the auditor is compatible with, and did not compromise, the auditor independence requirement of the Corporations Act 2001 
(Cth) for the following reasons:

• all non-audit services are subject to corporate governance procedures, including oOh!’s Non-Audit Services Policy, adopted 
by the Group and have been reviewed by those charged with the governance of the Group throughout the year to ensure they 
do not impact the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and

• the non-audit services provided do not undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in APES 
110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) as they did not involve the auditor reviewing 
or auditing its own work, acting in a management or decision-making capacity for the Group, acting as an advocate to the 
Group or jointly sharing the risks and rewards.
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Details of the audit and non-audit service fees paid or payable to the Company’s auditor during the year are disclosed in Note 31 
of the financial statements.

Audit and assurance services
2022 

$
2021 

$

KPMG Australia

Audit and review of Financial Statements 673,770 601,002

Other assurance services 131,087 171,991

Total audit and assurance services 804,857 772,993

Other services
2022 

$
2021 

$

KPMG Australia

Taxation compliance and advisory services 473,978 213,407

Total other services 473,978 213,407

Total auditor’s remuneration 1,278,835 986,400

OTHER INFORMATION
The following information, contained in this Annual Financial Report, forms part of this Directors’ Report:
• Operating and Financial Review

• Board of Directors

• Audited Remuneration Report

• Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration

This Report is made in accordance with a resolution of Directors, pursuant to section 298(2)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

Signed on behalf of the Directors.

Tony Faure 
Chair

20 February 2023, Sydney
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Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under 

Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 

To the Directors of oOh!media Limited 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit of oOh!media Limited for 
the financial year ended  31 December 2022 there have been: 
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the oOh!media Remuneration Report for the year ending 31 December 2022. 
This Report sets out the Group’s approach to its remuneration philosophy and on-going refinements of the incentive structure 
introduced to further align with shareholder value. 

During CY22, oOh!media focused on capitalising on the growth of the Out of Home (OOH) sector against other media. The scale, 
diverse assets, increasing digitisation, creativity, outstanding teamwork and appointment of new key talent to the business positions 
us well for current and future success. 

The Group’s financial performance in CY22 improved compared to CY21. Revenue and EBITDA increased over the previous year, 
leading to a total of 4.5c per share in dividends for the full year, up from 1c per share in CY21.

Our remuneration focus during CY22 was on the implementation of a range of changes to the remuneration framework following 
a broad-based external review of the Group’s approach to remuneration in late CY21. These changes have been designed to 
ensure a stronger link between incentives and performance outcomes, rewarding achievement of the Group’s post-COVID-19 
growth strategy and aligned with shareholder returns.

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 
In the past year we experienced some changes to our KMP:

• We would like to thank Mick Hellman for the contribution he made during his two years on the Board as well as his contribution 
on the Remuneration & Nomination Committee. Mick retired from the Board on 9 April 2022.

• Sheila Lines, the former Chief Financial Officer resigned effective 1 August 2022 after 4 years at oOh!. Sheila made a highly 
valuable contribution to oOh! during her tenure and played an instrumental role in strengthening the Company’s balance sheet 
enabling the Company to execute on its strategy. 

After a market wide executive search process, conducted by a top tier search firm, we were pleased to be able to internally 
promote Chris Roberts to Chief Financial Officer, effective 1 August 2022. 

LONG TERM INCENTIVES
oOh! continues to review and adjust incentives to ensure they appropriately incentivise and retain executives while meeting 
shareholder expectations for disciplined financial management. 

The Long-term incentives (LTI) have been retained and remained largely unchanged over the last three years. A refinement of 
the Free Cash Flow (FCF) hurdle was made to expand the measure as a cumulative FCF per share measure over the entire 3-year 
performance period, providing greater alignment between investing for growth over a longer period and shareholder expectations. 

Details for CY22 LTI can be found on page 39 of this Report.
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SHORT TERM INCENTIVES
Short-term incentives (STI) company performance measures have been expanded in CY22. The EBITDA margin measure has been 
revised, and the Company also introduced a new measure targeting the achievement of a revenue budget, and the pre-existing 
measures were reweighted accordingly. 

The four CY22 measures, are as outlined below:

• 40% achieving adjusted underlying EBITDA1 at 20% of revenue for CY22;

• 25% maintaining or growing Out of Home market share2 from the end of CY21;

• 25% achieving CY22 revenue3 budget; and 

• 10% achieving strategic priority to increase overall employee engagement scores from a 2021 base. 

Adjusting the EBITDA measure continues to incentivise driving profitable revenue growth and appropriately removes reference 
to CY19 post the COVID-19 recovery. The reweighting of the revenue metric balances alignment to the strategic goal of revenue 
growth with share and margin growth.

Further detail relevant to the CY22 STI Plan, measures and outcomes can be found on page 39 of this Report. 

STI DEFERRAL INTRODUCTION
An equity-based deferral scheme will be introduced in CY23, reflecting market practice to increase equity participation in executive 
remuneration and further aligns executive reward to shareholder interests.

2020 LTI INCENTIVES 
The CY20 LTI partially vested in February 2023, resulting in 92.4% of the full allocation vesting. Details of the outcomes can be found 
on page 35 of this Report. 

It is not yet known whether the minimum hurdles will be met for LTI issued in CY21. Accordingly, the business continues to accrue 
for all active LTI’s. 

EMPLOYEE SHARE TRUST 
The Company initiated steps in CY22 to establish an Employee Share Trust (EST) early in CY23 to assist with the allocation of employee 
incentive schemes. No shares were purchased on market or issued under the EST during CY22, however the Company proposes 
to buy shares on market in CY23 to fulfil the vesting of the 2020 LTI’s. The detail of these purchases will be disclosed in the FY23 
Remuneration Report as required under the ASX Listing Rules.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FEES
An external benchmarking exercise was also undertaken in respect of Non-executive Director fees, with the result that these 
fees remained unchanged for CY22.

The Non-executive Director fees have been reviewed and will increase in CY23, the first increase since 2019.

In a year of emergence from COVID-19 operational challenges, oOh!media’s leadership and the entire team have navigated 
the opportunities well to drive strong financial performance while supporting all stakeholders. 

Philippa Kelly  
Chair, Remuneration & Nomination Committee

1. Adjusted underlying EBITDA referred to in Note 4 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

2. Market share for Executives and dual role staff is measured across Australia and New Zealand, but otherwise is Australian market share for Australian staff 
and New Zealand market share for New Zealand staff.

3. Revenue for Executives and dual role staff is measured across Australia and New Zealand, but otherwise is Australian revenue for Australian staff and New Zealand 
revenue for New Zealand staff.
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The information in this Report has been audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

LIST OF KMP 
The key management personnel (KMP) for CY22 are the Non-executive Directors and two Executive roles with specific responsibility 
for planning, directing and controlling the material activities of oOh!media, namely the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer 
and the Chief Financial Officer. There is also an Executive Leadership Team that supports the KMP. 

Non-executive Directors

Tony Faurea Chair and Non-executive Director

Marco (Mick) Hellmanb Non-executive Director 

Philippa Kelly Independent Non-executive Director

Timothy (Tim) Miles Independent Non-executive Director

Joanne (Joe) Pollard Independent Non-executive Director

Andrew Stevens Independent Non-executive Director 

David Wiadrowski Independent Non-executive Director and Lead Independent Director

Executives

Catherine (Cathy) O’Connor Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director (CEO)

Christopher (Chris) Robertsc Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

Former Executives 

Sheila Linesd Chief Financial Officer  

a. Early in 2022 the Board determined Tony Faure was not to be considered an independent director based on his consultancy to Junkee Media July 2016-Dec 2020 
and that is reflected in this table for CY22. The Board has since considered the circumstances, including the sale of Junkee Media and the lapse of further time, 
and has now determined that, from 2023, the Board considers Tony Faure to be an independent Non-executive Director. 

b. Mick Hellman retired effective 9 April 2022. 

c. Chris Roberts was appointed CFO effective 1 August 2022. 

d. Sheila Lines resigned as CFO effective 1 August 2022 and remained as a consultant to the Company until 30 September 2022. 

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
The Remuneration Report refers to a range of non-IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards) financial information including 
adjusted underlying EBITDA4. oOh!media believes this non-IFRS financial information provides useful insight to users of this Report 
in measuring the financial performance and condition of oOh!media.

The Remuneration Report has been prepared on a basis consistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements and accordingly 
includes total remuneration details for the year ended 31 December 2022. oOh!media’s remuneration framework is structured 
to ensure it is market competitive and supports and motivates the Executive and the broader team to work toward both short 
and long-term strategic objectives that align to sustainable value creation for shareholders.

4. Adjusted underlying EBITDA referred to in Note 4 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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REMUNERATION PHILOSOPHY  
This Remuneration Report explains the Board’s approach to executive remuneration, and to performance and remuneration 
outcomes for oOh!media and its KMP.

REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES AND STRATEGY
The success of oOh!media is based on its people and culture. oOh!media’s remuneration framework focuses on a competitive 
fixed annual remuneration (FAR) combined with short-term incentives (STI) and long-term incentives (LTI).

Executive incentives are “at-risk” and reward achievement of oOh!media’s annual financial outcomes and strategic goals, 
including long-term growth in shareholder value.

ATTRACT AND RETAIN REWARD ACHIEVEMENT OF GOALS
LONG-TERM ALIGNMENT 

TO SHAREHOLDERS

FAR STI LTI

CASH EQUITY

• Benchmarked in December 2021 
against comparable independent 
remuneration data and advice 

• Key roles with retention risk reviewed 
as market conditions require

• Set competitively to relevant industry 
peer group

• Based on two components: 

 – Company performance, 
comprised of: 

 - EBITDA margin 

 - Revenue achievement 

 - Market share

 - Increasing employee 
engagement

 – Individual performance 

• Set yearly, linked to individual 
and group performance against 
organisation strategy, and subject 
to over-riding Board discretions, 
including to issue as equity

• Based on:

 – Cumulative Free Cash Flow per share

 – Return on Invested Capital 

 – Relative Total Shareholder Return 

• Three-year performance period

• Board retains right to alter target 
or clawback as necessary

Market competitive fixed  
annual remuneration

Set challenging short- and long-term incentives linked  
to the creation of sustainable shareholder returns

oOh!media’s remuneration principles are to guide practices that are:

• market competitive;

• performance related; 

• fair; and

• relatively easily understood – subject to some complexities inherent in balancing fairness to employees and shareholders amidst 
the uncertainties of the post-COVID environment.

Fixed remuneration is periodically benchmarked and discretionary remuneration is linked to achievement of business objectives 
through interlinked goals.

The Board and/or the Remuneration & Nomination Committee reviews all remuneration principles, practices, strategies and 
approaches, at least annually, to ensure they support the long-term business strategy and are appropriate for a listed company 
of oOh!media’s size.
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COMPONENTS OF REMUNERATION AND THEIR RATIONALE  
INCLUDING LINKS TO PERFORMANCE AND SHAREHOLDER WEALTH

Component Performance conditions Link to strategy and performance

Fixed Annual 
Remuneration (FAR)

Salary and other 
benefits including 
superannuation.

No conditions To attract and retain talented people and in 
compliance with legal obligations to pay employees 
at least minimum salaries and superannuation.

Short Term Incentive 
(STI)

Most employees are 
eligible to participate 
in the STI program. 
Participants must 
be employed 
by 1 October in the 
year to be eligible 
that year.5

STI for each member of staff is based on 
proportions of organisational and individual 
performance, weighted to organisational 
performance with seniority. Executive KMP have 
a weighting of 70% organisational and 30% 
individual performance.

Individual performance measures are set 
with line management and subject to overriding 
discretions and consistency calibrations.
Organisational performance is assessed against 
four measures:

a. 40% EBITDA Margin 

Achieve adjusted underlying EBITDA of 20% 
of revenue for CY22.

b. 25% Revenue Achievement 

Achieve CY22 revenue budget. 

c. 25% maintaining Out of Home market share

Share of the total Australian and New Zealand 
Out of Home market6. The base is no adverse 
change in market share from the end of CY21 
for Australia and New Zealand. 

d. 10% achievement of strategic priorities 

The strategic priority measure for CY22 was 
to increase the overall employee engagement 
score by 3% from CY21 base.

In CY22, an EBITDA margin was added as 
a company performance measure to reward 
keeping revenue profitable and controlling costs. 
This simplified and replaced the former metric 
of Relative revenue drop through to EBITDA against 
CY19, which had been developed for the volatile 
revenues of COVID-19 impacted CY20-21. 

The Revenue Achievement measure was 
introduced in CY22 to reward growing oOh!’s 
revenues and more broadly leading OOH share 
of media growth.

The Market Share measure complements the 
Revenue Achievement measure, to ensure that 
revenue growth is not simply due to sector growth, 
by requiring oOh! to maintain or grow position 
as a market leader in Out of Home. 
The strategic priorities measure rewards increased 
employee engagement which is critical to 
sustaining a high level of employee performance 
and business success.
The 3 financial measures each include the 
opportunity for a greater than 100% STI allocation 
for overachievement, but the strategic priority 
measure does not. 

All of the measures allow for a reduced allocation 
for a shortfall in achievement that is still above 
minimum thresholds. 

Subject to overriding Board discretion, no 
allocation applies for underachievement below 
the stated minimum thresholds. 

For further detail see page 39.

5. This is subject to Board discretion in exceptional circumstances.

6. For Australia this is measured principally using the Outdoor Media Association CY22 data and for New Zealand the figures are provided by the Out of Home Media 
Association Aotearoa (OOHMAA).
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Component Performance conditions Link to strategy and performance

Long-Term Incentive 
(LTI)7

An allocation of 
performance rights 
granted by invitation, 
to a defined set of 
senior leaders as 
approved by the 
Board and aligned to 
long-term shareholder 
value creation.

There are three LTI performance hurdles, each 
measured over a 3-year performance period 
and each representing 1/3 of the target award.

The first is based on a Cumulative Free Cash Flow 
per share (FCF), being calculated as: 

(operating cash flow CY22-CY24 less capital 
expenditure and finance lease liabilities paid over 
CY22-CY24) / weighted number of issued shares8.

The second hurdle is based on a Return on Invested 
Capital (ROIC): (CY24 adjusted underlying EBITDA) / 
invested capital.9

The third hurdle is based on Relative Total 
Shareholder Return10 (TSR) assessed against the 
ASX200 index (excluding Financials, Industrials 
and Materials).

For specific targets see page 39.

Aligns the interests of Executive KMP and other 
key employees with shareholders by focusing on 
long-term growth. The purpose of oOh!media’s 
LTI Plan is to provide incentive to attract, retain 
and motivate eligible employees whose present 
and potential contributions are important to the 
success of oOh!media by offering them a chance 
to participate in the future performance of the 
Company. All selected measures are objective 
and transparent:

• FCF11 aligns incentives with shareholder interests 
by measuring and rewarding oOh!media’s ability 
to generate cash flow on a per share basis. 

• The ROIC hurdle rewards employees for 
generating shareholder returns relative to 
the deployment of the Company’s capital. 

• Relative TSR measures performance against 
peers and reflects investor returns generated by 
the Company compared to a broad index of 
other investment opportunities for shareholders.

The Board retains the right to alter targets during 
the performance period to account for significant 
acquisitions, divestments or other items, or 
to clawback or adjust any or all allocated LTI 
in relevant circumstances.

The number of rights that vest is a percentage 
of those targeted, based on the outcome of 
the three hurdles over the performance period 
of CY22 to CY24.

For further detail see page 39.

7. CY20 and CY21 LTI’s have the same “Link to strategy and performance” and “Performance conditions”, except the FCF target is not cumulative, instead being 
based on operating cash flow and finance lease liabilities paid in the final year of the relevant performance period, i.e. for 2020 LTI that is CY22 and for 2021 
LTI that is CY23. The CY19 LTI did not vest on testing in March 2022 and therefore did not affect compensation in the reporting period. For detail on the CY19 LTI, 
see the 2019 Annual Report.

8. Having regard to the weighted shares on issue from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024.

9. Average of the opening and closing balances of invested capital for CY24. Fixed costs are fixed rent obligations previously realised in cost of goods sold and opex 
pre AASB16 resulting in an Adjusted Underlying EBITDA result. Invested capital is total equity plus net debt.

10. Relative TSR is calculated as aggregate dividends paid during the 3-year performance period plus the share price movement from the beginning to end 
of the performance period. 

11. FCF was introduced in CY20 as more appropriate post-AASB16 than the previous EPS measure, which would require adjustment for non-cash accounting 
impacts of AASB16 as leases within the Company’s extensive lease inventory are initiated or approach maturity, or are modified or terminated within the original 
lease term.
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Remuneration linked to financial performance indicators and shareholder wealth

Information on the Company’s performance is shown below:

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Adjusted underlying EBITDA ($’000) 127,096 77,553 62,499a 138,987 112,525

Profit / (loss) attributable to the owners of the Company ($’000) 31,516 (10,288) (36,183)a 13,668 b 29,124

Basic earnings / (loss) per share (cents) 5.3 (1.7) (7.1)a 5.0c 14.3d

Dividends – interim paid and final declared ($’000) 26,368 5,986 nil 26,566 26,094

Dividends per share – interim paid and final declared (cents) 4.5 1.0 nil 11.0 11.0

Share price – closing at balance date ($) 1.29 1.69 1.66 3.64 3.42

Change in share price over the year ($) (0.41) 0.03  (1.98) 0.22 (1.08)

Free Cash Flow per share (cents per share) 11.5 8.7 16.4 14.5 15.3

Return on invested capital (%) 14.92 9.12 6.11 12.09 20.77

a. As a result of the IFRS IC agenda decision – IAS 38 Intangible Assets, the Group has changed its accounting policy, retrospectively adjusting the accounting 
for customisation costs for cloud computing arrangements. Refer Note 2 of the FY21 Consolidated Financial Statements.

b. As a result of the IFRS Interpretation Committee (IC) agenda decision, the Group has changed its accounting policy, retrospectively adjusting the deferred 
tax accounting for Brands. Refer to Note 10 of the Consolidated Financial Statements attached to the 2020 Annual Report.

c. CY19 basic earnings / (loss) per share have been adjusted to reflect the Group’s capital raising during 2020.

d. CY18 basic earnings / (loss) per share have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the purchase price allocation accounting for Adshel which was completed in 2019. 

EXECUTIVE KMP REMUNERATION

Executive KMP FAR for 2022

Cathy O’Connor  $1,334,878a

Chris Roberts  $   453,878b 

Sheila Lines  $   529,312a+c

a. FAR includes 10% superannuation from 1 January – 30 June 2022 and then 10.5% superannuation from 1 July – 31 December 2022.

b. Chris Roberts became an KMP on 1 August 2022, after becoming the CFO. This amount is annualised. See the Statutory Remuneration Disclosure Table 
– KMP on page 36 for the prorated amount for the period 1 August – 31 December 2022.

c. Sheila Lines resigned as a KMP effective 1 August 2022. This amount is annualised. See the Statutory Remuneration Disclosure Table – KMP on page 36 
for the prorated amount for the period 1 January – 31 July 2022.
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2022 STI OUTCOMES
The 2022 STI company performance outcomes (worth 70% of the total STI outcome for Executive KMP) are based on performance 
against four performance measures (detailed on page 39):

1. 40% EBITDA margin; 

2. 25% Revenue Achievement;

3. 25% maintaining market share; and

4. 10% achievement of strategic priorities.

The business did not meet the threshold for payment under the market share measure, but either exceeded, met or substantially 
met the other three measures, as detailed below: 

1. The EBITDA margin was 21.4%. As this exceeds the target, it translates to 136.4% achievement against this measure. 

2. The revenue target was partially met at 95.6% of target. This translates to 72.6% achievement against this measure.

3. CY22 OOH market share dropped by more than the 1% margin for error. Accordingly, there is no allocation in respect of this measure. 

4. The strategic priorities measure was exceeded, with the overall employee engagement score improving by 5%, which was 
greater than the target increase of 3%. As there is no additional allocation for overachievement of this measure, this translates 
to 100% achievement against this measure. 

Taken together, achievement against the corporate measures resulted in 82.7% of the potential full corporate allocation for CY22 
being awarded. 

For details on the 2022 STI individual performance outcomes (worth the remaining 30% of the total STI outcome for Executive KMP), 
see the table on page 32.

Target STI for 2022  

The table below outlines the Annualised Target STI for the Executive KMP for CY22.

Executive KMPa Min STI Target STI 
opportunityb  

Target as a  
% of FAR

Max STI  
opportunityc

Max target as a  
% of FAR

Cathy O’Connor $0 $400,000 29.97% $600,000 44.95%

Chris Robertsd $0 $154,700e 34.08% $232,050e 51.13%

a. Sheila Lines did not participate in the CY22 as she was not employed for the whole performance period. 

b. Target STI represents the amount payable at 100 per cent achievement of STI measures outlined on page 39. 

c. Maximum STI is available on reaching a set value above the Revenue budget and OOH market share increasing to 43.1% across ANZ and EBITDA margin 
of 22% and employee engagement lifting to at least 74% and 150% on achievement of individual performance measures, for detail see page 39.   

d. Chris Roberts was appointed CFO effective 1 August 2022. 

e. Chris Roberts became a KMP on 1 August 2022, after becoming the CFO. Amounts are annualised. The prorated amounts for the period 1 August – 31 December 
2022 are target STI opportunity of $64,458 and max STI opportunity of $96,688.

Final 2022 STI payments

The table below outlines the STI payments to the Executive KMP for the calendar year ended 31 December 2022, based on the 
Annual Bonus Plan and including the STI allocation as a percentage of the FAR:

Executive KMP Amount paid (inclusive of superannuation) ($)a Actual allocation as a % of FAR

Cathy O’Connor $351,532 26.33%

Chris Robertsb $58,582 12.91%

a. Payable in Q1 2023. 

b. The Amount paid reflects prorating for Chris’ start date as KMP of 1 August 2022.
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COMPONENTS OF REMUNERATION
The following table shows the target remuneration mix as a percentage of total remuneration for Executive KMP in CY22. The STI 
amount reflects the Target STI opportunity and the LTI amount is based on the total face value of the number of performance rights 
granted in May 2022 for C O’Connor, S Lines and C Roberts related to the 2022 LTI program.

% 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

C O’CONNOR
FAR 53.72%

S LINESa

FAR 65.81%

C ROBERTSb

FAR 59.05%

STI 16.10%

STI 20.13%LTI 20.82%

LTI 30.18%

LTI 34.19%

A. Sheila Lines did not participate in STI in CY22 as she was not employed for the whole performance period and that was known 
before invitations to participate were issued. Her existing LTI rights remain on foot with the same conditions. 

B. Chris Roberts’ LTI’s were granted prior to becoming a KMP on 1 August 2022. FAR, LTI target face value and target STI 
are annualised at KMP rate. 

CEO STI Performance Scorecard

The $ Total STI allocation is 58.59% of the $600,000 Maximum STI Opportunity. 

Goala

Company/ 
Individual 
weighting

Internal Company 
measures 
weighting

% STI  
achievement

% STI achieved as 
% of Total Target  

STI allocation
$ Total STI 
allocation

Company performance measures 70%

• EBITDA margina 40% 136.4% 38.2% $152,720

• Revenue achievementa+b 25%  72.6% 12.7% $50,813

• Maintaining market sharea 25% 0% 0% $0

• Strategic prioritiesa 10% 100% 7% $28,000

Individual performance measures

• Deliver milestones against the agreed 
growth strategy 

• Successfully define and implement 
a new organisational structure and 
operating model, which supports 
the company strategy and leads 
to cost savings positively impacting 
our profitability 

• Take an industry leadership role and 
build the OOH sector profile, which 
helps to grow the overall industry and 
subsequently positively benefits oOh!

• Successful retention of desired 
existing and acquisition of agreed 
new commercial contracts with 
appropriate margin

• Successfully acquire new strategic 
clients in key growth areas in line 
with company strategy and with 
appropriate margin

30% n/a 100% 30% $120,000
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CFO STI Performance Scorecard

The $ Total STI allocation is 60.59% of the $96,688 Maximum STI Opportunityc. 

Goal a

Company/ 
Individual 
weighting

Internal Company 
measures 
weighting

% STI  
achievement

% STI achieved as 
% of Total Target  

STI allocation
$ Total STI 

allocation c

Company performance measures 70%

• EBITDA margina+b 40% 136.4% 38.2% $24,610

• Revenue achievementa 25%  72.6% 12.7% $8,188

• Maintaining market sharea 25% 0% 0% $0

• Strategic prioritiesa 10% 100% 7% $4,512

Individual performance measures 

• Successful transition into CFO role

• Successful management of Netsuite 
ERP post implementation  
(October to December) 

• Deliver CY22 Opex either in line 
or below CY22 budget of $148.7m 
excluding any items which are 
reporting as non-operating items 
(if any) in the CY22 results

30% n/a 110%c 33%c $21,271

a. For detail of these measures see the STI performance conditions in the table on page 39. 

b. EBITDA margin is Adjusted Underlying EBITDA as a percentage of Revenue for CY22. This resulted in an EBITDA margin of 21.4%.

c. These amounts reflect prorating for time served as KMP from 1 August 2022. 

Executive Officers LTI

The rights over ordinary shares granted in the period were:

Executive KMP  
and Officers

Plan Number of 
rights granted 
during 2022 

Vesting  
conditiona

Grant 
date

Face value 
at grant date

Fair value at grant date Vesting 
date

Total Per right $

Cathy O’Connor LTI 
Plan

Total: 443,892 May 
2022

Total: $750,000 Total: $541,578 February 
2025

1/3 FCF Cumulative $250,000 $207,164 1.40

1/3 ROIC $250,000 $207,164 1.40

1/3 TSR $250,000 $127,249 0.86

Sheila Linesb LTI 
Plan

Total: 162,760 May 
2022

Total: $275,000 Total: $187,500 February 
2025

1/3 FCF Cumulative $91,667 $70,529 0.43

1/3 ROIC $91,667 $62,391 0.38

1/3 TSR $91,667 $54,579 1.01

Chris Robertsc LTI 
Plan

Total: 94,969 May 
2022

Total: $160,000 Total: $128,805 February 
2025

1/3 FCF Cumulative $53,333 $48,525 1.54

1/3 ROIC $53,333 $48,525 1.54

1/3 TSR $53,333 $31,755 1.01

Maria Polczynskid LTI 
Plan

Total: 59,185 May 
2022

Total: $100,000 Total: $80,503 February 
2025

1/3 FCF Cumulative $33,333 $30,328 1.54

1/3 ROIC $33,333 $30,328 1.54

1/3 TSR $33,333 $19,847 1.01

a. For detail on vesting conditions see page 41.

b. Sheila Lines resigned as CFO effective 1 August 2022. 

c. Chris Roberts’ LTI were granted to him before he was appointed KMP on 1 August 2022. See page 36 for the pro-rated amount for his time as KMP.

d. Maria Polczynski is the Company Secretary. 
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The table below sets out the details of each tranche of rights issued or approved to be issued to Executive KMPa and Officers 
over the last three years, together with their respective grant and vesting dates.

CY20 CY21 CY22 CY23 CY24 CY25

a. Numbers represent number of rights granted.

b. The first date is the grant date and the second date is the vesting date. 

c. Chris Roberts’ LTI’s were granted to him before he was appointed KMP on 1 August 2022.

LTI’s Affecting Future Periods 

The outcome of each LTI grant may be reported in future years when it impacts the remuneration of the KMP at the end of the 
relevant performance period. The fair value of LTI performance rights that have been granted is amortised over the performance 
period. The following table summarises the maximum value of the LTIs that will be reported in the statutory remuneration tables 
in future years if the relevant performance conditions are met in full. The minimum value of the LTI grants is nil if the Company fails 
to meet any of the relevant performance conditions.

Future expense by plan Future expense by Financial Year

Executive CY21-23 CY22-24 Total CY23 CY24 Total 

Cathy O’Connor $186,380 $ 361,052 $ 547,432 $ 366,906 $ 180,526 $ 547,432

Sheila Lines $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Chris Robertsa $ 39,761 $ 85,870 $ 125,631 $ 82,696 $ 42,935 $ 125,631

Maria Polczynski $ 24,850 $ 53,669 $78,519 $ 51,685 $ 26,834 $ 75,519

a. All on foot LTI performance rights were granted to Chris Roberts before he was appointed KMP on 1 August 2022. 

C Roberts – 142,780a c 

Dec 2020 - Feb 2023b

Maria Polczynski – 107,085a

Dec 2020 - Feb 2023b

S Lines – 156,383a

May 2021 – Feb 2024b

C Roberts – 90,986a c 

May 2021 – Feb 2024b

S Lines – 162,760a

May 2022 – Feb 2025b

C Roberts – 94,696a c 
May 2022 – Feb 2025b

M Polczynski – 56,866a

May 2021 – Feb 2024b

M Polczynski – 59,185a

May 2022 – Feb 2025b

CY20 LTI
S Lines – 245,404a

Dec 2020 - Feb 2023b

CY21 LTI
C O’Connor – 426,499a

May 2021 – Feb 2024b

CY22 LTI
C O’Connor – 443,892a 
May 2022 – Feb 2025b
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2020 LTI Outcomes

The 2020 grant partially vested, as detailed below: 

1. Return on Invested Capital: ROIC was 14.9%, which translates to 127.1% achievement of this measure; 

2. Free Cash Flow: FCF was 11.5 cents per share, which translates to 150% achievement of this measure; and

3. Total Shareholder Return: this measure was not met. 

Taken together, achievement against the LTI measures resulted in 92.4% of the full allocation for CY20 being awarded.  

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

Overview & arrangements

The Board aims to set Non-executive Directors’ remuneration at a level that attracts and retains high calibre and talented 
Non-executive Directors. 

The total amount provided to all Non-executive Directors for their services as Directors, as fixed by oOh!media, must not exceed 
$1,400,000 in aggregate in any financial year, as approved at the 2020 AGM. 

There was no increase to Non-executive Director fees for CY22.

Non-executive Director fees

From 1 January 2022, the Directors’ annual fee structure is as below:

Chair feea Member feea

Board $245,000b $135,000

Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee $25,000 $12,500

Remuneration & Nomination Committee $20,000 $10,000

Technology Committee $20,000 $10,000

Per diem feec $1,750

a. Inclusive of superannuation.

b. The Chair of the Board receives no extra member fees in addition to Board Chair fee.

c. To recognise excessive additional responsibility or time commitments, where relevant. Application of per diem is subject to oOh! Board Chair and RNC Chair 
approval. No per diem payments were made in CY22.
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Statutory Remuneration Disclosure Table - KMP 

The following statutory remuneration disclosure table for KMP has been prepared in accordance with accounting standards 
and the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) requirements.

The amounts shown relating to share-based remuneration are equal to the accounting expense recognised in oOh!media’s 
Consolidated Financial Statements in respect of the LTI rights grant. These amounts do not reflect the actual realisable value received 
in CY22 year or in future years. 

Share based 

Short term 
Post-

Employment
Other 

Name Salary
STI Cash 

Bonus
Non-

monetary

STI 
Unrestricted 

Shares 

STI 
Restricted 

shares LTIa Super
Termination 

Benefit Total
Performance 

related %b

Tony Faure 2022 222,139 - - - - - 22,768 - 244,907 -

2021 223,323 - - - - - 21,773 - 245,096 -

Mick Hellman 2022 39,596 - - - - - - - 39,596 -

2021 145,002 - - - - - - - 145,002 -

Philippa Kelly 2022 149,661 - - - - - 15,339 - 165,000 -

2021 147,762 - - - - - 14,412 - 162,174 -

Sheila Lines 2022 292,385 - - - - 234,136 18,107 - 544,628 43%

2021 503,226 149,090 - - - 185,438 22,398 - 860 152 39%

Tim Milesc 2022 153,248 - - - - - 3,083 - 156,331 -

2021 157,724 - - - - - 4,602 - 162,326 -

Cathy 
O’Connor

2022 1,310,447 351,532 - - - 366,906 24,430 - 2,053,316 35%

2021 1,259,482 285,900 - - - 190,432 36,784 - 1,772,598 27%

Joe Pollard 2022 131,520 - - - - - 13,480 - 145,000 -

2021 46,982 - - - - - 4,698 - 51,680 -

Chris Robertsd 2022 184,860 58,582 - - - 204,066 9,558 - 457,066 57%

2021 - - - - - - - - - -

Andrew 
Stevens

2022 150,017 - - - - - 7,483 - 157,500 -

2021 148,283 - - - - - 9,219 - 157,502 -

David 
Wiadrowskie

2022 163,205 - - - - - 4,038 - 167,244 -

2021 155,153 - - - - - 4,848 - 160,001 -

a. Fair value of performance rights related to the LTI grants scheduled to vest in 2023, 2024 and 2025 respectively. The fair value of non-market hurdles 
has been assessed and adjusted for probability in accordance with accounting standards.

b. Performance-related percentage is calculated by adding cash and share-based remuneration amounts (all of which have performance hurdles 
that determine payment) and dividing by total remuneration.

c.  Tim Miles’ pay has been converted from New Zealand dollars.

d. Chris Roberts became a KMP upon appointment as CFO effective 1 August 2022. Amounts represent the payments relating to the period in CY22 
that Chris was a KMP. 

e. David Wiadrowski was appointed Lead Independent Director on 25 February 2020. There is no additional remuneration for this role.
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Director Shareholdings

The following table sets out the movement during the reporting period in the number of ordinary shares in oOh!media held 
directly, indirectly or beneficially, by Directors, including their related parties. The Board has a minimum investment policy for 
the Non-executive Directors requiring them to acquire on market shares totalling a minimum total acquisition cost of one times 
the base fee that is paid to Non-executive Directors (“Minimum Investment”) within three years following the earlier of the date 
of their appointment or the adoption of the policy (February 2019).

Name of Director

Shares Held  
at 1 January  

2022

Net  
change  

other

Held at  
31 December  

2022

Met minimum 
investment 

requirementa

Required to 
meet minimum 

investment

Tony Faure 306,643 90,643 397,338 Yes Feb 2022

Mick Hellmanb 63,851,250 n/a n/a n/a n/a

Philippa Kelly 110,000 22,000 132,000 Yes Sept 2022

Tim Miles 212,000 25,000 237,000 Yes May 2022

Cathy O’Connor Nil 22,422 22,422 n/a n/a

Joe Pollard 33,783 24,278 58,061 No Aug 2024

Andrew Stevens 100,000 Nil 100,000 No Sept 2023

David Wiadrowski 100,000 50,000 150,000 Yes Nov 2022

a. Based on cumulative acquisition cost of Minimum Investment.

b. Mick Hellman retired as a Non-executive Director of the Company on 9 April 2022.

Executive KMP and Officers: Movement in rights over ordinary shares 

The following table sets out the movement during the reporting period in the number of rights over ordinary shares in oOh!media 
held directly, indirectly or beneficially, by Executive KMP or officers in oOh!media, including their related parties.

Executive KMP 
and Officers

Number  
held at  

1 Jan 2022

Vesting 
conditions of 

those held  
at 1 Jan 2022

Number 
granted as 

remuneration 
during 2022

Vesting 
conditions 

of those 
granted 

during 2022

Number 
and value – 
vested and 

exercised

Number 
lapsed  

during 2022

Held at  
31 December 

2022 and  
not vested

Cathy O’Connor 426,499 
(CY21 LTI)

FCF 
ROIC 

TSR

443,892 FCF 
ROIC  

TSR

- - 870,391

Chris Roberts 41,160 
(CY19 LTI)

CAGR/EPS  
TSR

94,696 FCF 
ROIC  

TSR

41,160 
100% of 
CY19 LTI 

forfeited

328,462

233,766 
(CY20 & 

CY21 LTI)

FCF 
ROIC  

TSR

Sheila Lines 70,745 
(CY19 LTI)

CAGR/EPS  
TSR

162,760 FCF 
ROIC  

TSR

– 70,745  
100% of 
CY19 LTI 

forfeited

564,547

401,787 
(CY20 & 

CY21 LTI)

FCF 
ROIC  

TSR

Maria Polczynski 30,870 
(CY19 LTI) 

CAGR/EPS  
TSR

59,185 FCF 
ROIC  

TSR

– 30,870 
100% of 
CY19 LTI 

forfeited

223,136

163,951 
(CY20 & 

CY21 LTI)

FCF 
ROIC  

TSR
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FURTHER INFORMATION

Service agreements 

oOh!media has entered into service agreements with each Executive. The Group retains the right to terminate a contract 
immediately by making payment equal to the agreed number of months’ fixed annual remuneration in lieu of notice, including 
superannuation plus any statutory entitlements of accrued annual and long service leave.

The service contracts outline the components of compensation but do not prescribe how compensation levels are modified year-
to-year. The Remuneration & Nomination Committee (RNC) reviews compensation each year to take into account any changes 
in scope or nature of role or agreed objectives to determine and recommend any changes in line with the remuneration strategy 
and principles.

The key conditions of the service agreements of the Executive KMP are set out in the following table.

Notice of termination

Name
Agreement 

commenced
Agreement 

expires
By Company By Employee

Termination payments 
under the contract

Cathy O’Connor 1 Jan 2021 No expiry 12 months 12 months 12 months FAR

Chris Roberts 1 August 2022 No expiry 6 months 6 months 6 months FAR

Sheila Lines* 1 Mar 2018 No expiry* 6 months 6 months 6 months FAR

* Sheila Lines resigned as CFO effective 1 August 2022

Non-executive Directors’ terms of appointment have no fixed end date, no fixed notice of termination period, nor any agreed 
termination payments.

All Non-executive Directors may not hold office without re-election beyond the third Annual General Meeting following appointment 
or the meeting at which they were last elected.

Director Related party transactions 

Directorships and shareholdings held by former oOh!media Limited’s Non-executive Director Mick Hellman gave rise to related party 
arrangements in the current and prior period. 

Mick Hellman is a Founder, Managing Partner & member of the Investment Committee of HMI Capital Management, L.P. HMI Capital 
Management, L.P was a significant shareholder in the Group. Mick Hellman was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 7 April 
2020 and retired as a Director effective 9 April 2022. In June 2020, the Company entered into a consultancy agreement with HMI 
under which the Company could request consultancy services on matters the Company considers are within the expertise of HMI. 
There was no fee payable for services provided under the consultancy agreement. The agreement was terminated when Mick 
retired as a Non-executive Director.

To mitigate any potential conflicts arising, there was a Board protocol in place whereby the aforementioned Board member 
was asked to exit a Board meeting should any matters arise that would have impacted their independence.

Use of advisers

Since 2016, oOh!media has engaged Aon Hewitt to provide benchmarking data on an ongoing basis. oOh!media subscribes to 
Aon Hewitt’s Media and General Industry Salary and Corporate IT Surveys, as well as participating in its Policy and Practice reviews. 
This allows oOh!media to access insight, expertise and benchmarking data as they relate to both individual positions and overall 
remuneration within oOh!media. In November 2021, oOh!media engaged PWC to assist with specific benchmarking for executive 
remuneration for CY22. 

The RNC has rights of access to management and to external auditors/resources without management present, and rights to seek 
explanations and additional information from management, advisers and auditors.

The RNC may seek the advice of the Company’s auditor, solicitor or other independent advisers (including external consultants 
and specialists) as to any matter pertaining to the powers or duties of the RNC or the responsibilities of the committee, as the RNC 
may require.
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REMUNERATION GOVERNANCE  

Remuneration & Nomination Committee and Board oversight

A Remuneration & Nomination Committee operates under a charter and set of responsibilities approved by the Board. The charter 
can be found on the Company’s Governance page in the Investors section of the oOh!media website – ww w.oohmedia.com.au 
and further detail on the RNC’s responsibilities can be found in the Company’s most recent Corporate Governance Statement.

The RNC has been delegated responsibility to review and make recommendations to the Board, with the Board maintaining 
overall responsibility as outlined below.

The Board maintains overall responsibility for oversight of the Company’s remuneration policy and the principles and processes 
which give effect to that policy. The Board approves, having regard to the recommendations of the RNC, the:

• Size, composition and criteria for membership of the Board, including review of Board succession plans, performance 
evaluation and the succession of the Chair, CEO and CFO, as well as Executive performance assessment processes and results;

• Company’s remuneration, recruitment, retention and termination policies and procedures for senior management;

• Company’s incentive strategy, performance targets and bonus payments, including major changes and developments 
to the Company’s equity incentive plans; and

• Effectiveness of the Diversity, Inclusion & Belonging Policy. 

Detailed information on STI and LTI granted or on foot in CY2212

Short-term incentive Long-term incentive

Description Annual bonus paid in cash (with Board discretion 
to issue as equity) based on achievement of both 
individual and Company performance measures. 

Award of performance rights with a three-year 
performance period based on performance against 
3 LTI measures.

Conditions/ 
Measures13

There are two components with separate conditions 
/ measures. 

1. Individual performance is based on achievement 
against individual goals set with manager and 
manager evaluation of performance. For KMP 
this comprises 30% of the whole STI.

2. Company performance is based on achievement 
against four measures. For KMP this comprises 
70% of the whole STI. Of this percentage, the 
four measures and their internal percentage 
weighting are:

A. 40%: EBITDA margin: achieving adjusted 
underlying EBITDA at 20% of revenue for CY22.

B. 25%: Revenue: achieve CY22 revenue budget.

C. 25%: Maintain or grow OOH market share: no 
adverse change to CY22 OOH market share14.

D. 10%: Achieve strategic priorities:  
3% increase employee engagement score 
from the final 2021 engagement survey results.

3 measures, each of equal weighting:

• Cumulative FCF15 per share of 24.8 cents

• ROIC of 16.5%  

• Relative TSR – top quartile of comparator group. 

Performance 
period

Calendar year 2022. Three calendar years i.e. 1 January to 31 December 
starting the year the LTI was granted.

12. This includes CY20 and CY21 LTI which are identical to those granted in CY22 except where otherwise specified. The CY19 LTI did not vest on testing in March 2022 
and therefore did not affect compensation in the reporting period. For detail on the CY19 LTI, see the 2019 Annual Report.

13. See also ‘Amount that can be earned’ for thresholds, stretch targets and rates applying to under/over achievement.

14. Principally using the Outdoor Media Association CY22 data (as adjusted for changing membership).

15. CY20 and CY21 LTI’s have the same performance conditions, except the FCF target is not cumulative, but is based on operating cash flow and finance 
lease liabilities paid in the final year of the relevant performance period, i.e. for 2020 LTI that is CY22 and for 2021 LTI that is CY23. 
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Short-term incentive Long-term incentive

Amount that 
can be earned

Each individual’s 2022 STI outcome is capped at 
150% of the target bonus specified in the individual’s 
employment contract. In addition, the Company 
performance measures are subject to the following 
thresholds and caps:

1. EBITDA Margin

100% target is achieved if Adjusted Underlying 
EBITDA is 20% of revenue. 

Partial allocation is awarded if Adjusted Underlying 
EBITDA is 18% of CY22 revenue. 

Allocation is capped at 150% as outlined below: 

EBITDA as % revenue STI % is

below 18% nil

at 18% 50%

between  
18-20%

pro-rata increase 
from 50-100%

at 20% 100%

between  
20-22%

pro-rata increase 
from 100-150%

at or above 22% 150%

2. OOH Market share measure

100% of the target is achieved when oOh! maintains 
by the end of CY22 its OOH market share at the 
end of CY21. 

Partial allocation (50%) is awarded if the Company 
achieves 99% of CY21 market share (i.e. achieves 
-1% of market share at the end of CY21). 

There is an uncapped 30% multiplier for each 1% 
of OOH market share gained above the 100% target. 

The number of performance rights granted was a fixed 
dollar amount as determined by reference to the 
face value of the shares on the date of grant. 

The number of performance rights granted to each 
Executive was the LTI value attributable to the 
individual at 1 January 2022 divided by the 20-trading 
day VWAP price to 31 December 2021 ($1.6896). 
Rights were granted for nil consideration.

The number of CY2216 performance rights granted 
to each of the KMP was:

KMP No.
Face 

Value
Date of 

grant

Cathy 
O’Connor 

443,892 $750,000 May 2022

Sheila Lines17 162,760 $275,000 May 2022

Chris Roberts18 94,696 $160,000 May 2022

16. For actual numbers of rights granted in CY20 and CY21 refer to the CY20 and CY21 Annual Reports respectively. The methodology is otherwise the same 
in CY20 and CY21.

17. Sheila Lines resigned effective 1 August 2022. 

18. Chris Roberts’ performance rights were granted before he became a KMP on 1 August 2022.
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Short-term incentive Long-term incentive

Amount that 
can be earned 
(continued)

3. Revenue measure:

100% of the target is met if the Company achieves 
its CY22 revenue budget, $620m.

Partial allocation is awarded if revenue is within 
a set value of the revenue budget (for Executive 
KMP the set value is $50m). 

Allocation is capped at 150% as outlined below: 

Revenue $ STI % is

below budget by $50m 50%

below budget by >$50m pro-rata vesting 50-100%

at budget 100%

over budget by < $50m pro-rata vesting 100-150%

over budget by $50m 
or more

150%

4. Strategic Priorities measure

3% increase employee engagement score from 
the final 2021 engagement survey results. Partial 
allocation at 50% if employee engagement score 
increases by 2%. There is no overachievement. 

Vesting n/a LTI performance rights granted in CY22, will vest, 
or not, following the publication of the 31 December 
2024 audited Financial Statements to the Australian 
Securities Exchange.

The percentage of performance rights that 
vest, if any, will be determined at the end of the 
performance period by reference to the following 
vesting schedule. One-third of the rights vest upon 
achieving 100% of each of the Cumulative FCF hurdle, 
the ROIC hurdle and the Relative TSR hurdle. Scaling of 
rights to vest addresses both some underperformance 
and, for FCF and ROIC, also overperformance, subject 
to maximum vesting at 150%.

The threshold and stretch targets for FCF, ROIC 
and Relative TSR over the performance period 
are determined by the Board and specified 
to the participant at the time of grant of the 
performance rights. Following testing, any rights 
that do not vest, lapse.

41



Short-term incentive Long-term incentive

Vesting 
(continued)

n/a
Company’s Cumulative 
Free Cash Flow per share 
(cents/per share) in CY2419

% of rights that vest

<18.520 Nil

18.5 50% of target LTI

18.5 – 24.8 Straight line pro rata 
vesting between 
50% and 100%

24.8 100% of target LTI

24.8 – 28.4 Straight line pro rata 
vesting between 
100% and 150%

28.4 or above Max 150% of target LTI

Company’s Return 
on Invested Capital21

% of rights that vest

<12.3%22 Nil

12.3% 50% of target LTI

12.3% – 16.5% Straight line pro rata 
vesting between  
50% and 100%

16.5% 100% of target LTI

16.5% – 17.3% Straight line pro rata 
vesting between  
100% and 150%

17.3% or above Max 150% of target LTI

Company’s Relative TSR23 % of rights that vest

Less than 50%  
Relative TSR

Nil

50% Relative TSR 
(threshold performance 
target)

50%

Between 50% and 
75% Relative TSR

Straight line pro rata 
vesting between 
50% and 100%

At or above 75% 
Relative TSR

100%

19. The 100% target represents the consensus of sell side analyst forecasts for the 3 years’ ending CY24. The FCF target for CY20 and CY21 LTI’s is not cumulative, 
but is based on operating cash flow and finance lease liabilities paid in the final year of the relevant performance period, i.e. for 2020 LTI that is CY22 and 
for 2021 LTI that is CY23. 

20. For CY21 target was 12.7 cents/ per share and the high and low were 27.9 & 3.9 cents/ per share respectively. For CY20 the target was 6.33 cents/ per share 
and the high and low were 11.2 & 2.14 cents/ per share respectively. 

21. The 100% target represents the consensus of sell side analyst forecasts for the 3 years’ ending CY24. Invested Capital is the average of the opening and closing 
balances of invested capital for CY24.

22. For CY21 target was 15.3%, and the high and low were 17.3% & 11.8% respectively. For CY20 the target was 12.9% and the high and low were 16.6% 
& 10.1% respectively.

23. Shareholder return is calculated as aggregate dividends paid during the 3-year performance period plus the share price movement from the beginning 
to end of the performance period.
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Short-term incentive Long-term incentive

Restrictions Participants must be employed and not under notice 
of resignation or termination at the completion 
of the performance period (calendar year) to be 
eligible for an STI award. The Board retains discretion 
to settle partial or complete payment in the case 
of good leavers.

Shares allocated on the vesting of rights after the 
three-year performance period are not subject to 
any additional trading restrictions. If an Executive 
ceases employment with oOh!media before the end 
of the performance period, their entitlement to rights 
(if any) will depend on the circumstances of cessation. 
All rights will lapse in the event of termination 
for cause. A full or pro rata number of rights may 
be approved by the Board if an Executive ceases 
employment by reason of redundancy, ill health, 
death, or other circumstances approved by the 
Board including resignation with good leaver status.

Clawback n/a To ensure integrity within the LTI Plan, the Board 
retains the authority to clawback or adjust LTI awards 
in circumstances such as fraudulent or dishonest 
behaviour, gross misconduct, and breach of 
obligations or material financial misstatement.
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General Information 
 

The Annual Financial Report covers oOh!media Limited and its controlled entities. The consolidated financial statements are 
presented in Australian currency. 

oOh!media Limited is a listed company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered office and principal 
place of business is: 

Level 2, 73 Miller Street, North Sydney, New South Wales 2060 

The Annual Financial Report was authorised for issue, in accordance with a resolution of the Directors. The Directors have the power 
to amend and reissue the Annual Financial Report.  

Through the use of the internet, oOh!media Limited ensures that all corporate reporting is timely, complete and available to all users 
at minimum cost to the Company. All media releases, financial reports and other information are available at the Investors section on 
the website: www.investors.oohmedia.com.au 

 

 

   

46 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2022

  



 

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income / (loss) 
for the year ended 31 December 2022 
  Consolidated 

    
  31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 

  Notes $'000 $'000 
    

Revenue  5 592,623 503,734 
Cost of media sites and production (1)  (169,852) (133,356) 
Gross profit   422,771 370,378 
Other income (2) 5 2,136 4,026 

    
Operating expenditure     
Employee benefits expense   (102,686) (100,999) 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 12,13,14 (200,665) (209,061) 
Legal and professional fees  (6,389) (5,160) 
Advertising and marketing expenses  (7,674) (7,781) 
Other expenses 7 (20,103) (20,183) 
Total operating expenditure   (337,517) (343,184) 

    
Operating profit   87,390 31,220 

    
Finance income  481 598 
Finance costs (3)  (41,727) (47,267) 
Net finance costs 8  (41,246) (46,669) 

    
Share of profit / (loss) of equity-accounted investees, net of tax  11 (90) 
Profit / (loss) before income tax   46,155 (15,539) 

    
Income tax (expense) / benefit 10 (14,639) 5,251 
Profit / (loss) after income tax   31,516 (10,288) 

    
Attributable to:    
Owners of the Company  31,516 (10,288) 
Profit / (loss) for the period   31,516 (10,288) 

    
    

Other comprehensive income / (loss)    
    

Items that may be subsequently classified to profit or loss:    
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax  7,118 3,455 
De-designation of interest rate derivatives to the Consolidated Income Statement, net of tax (3)  (1,376) 2,502 
Foreign currency translation differences   (1,782) 272 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period   35,476 (4,059) 

    
Attributable to:    
Owners of the Company  35,476 (4,059) 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period    35,476 (4,059) 

    

Earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company   Cents Cents 
Basic earnings / (loss) per share 29 5.3 (1.7) 
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share 29 5.3 (1.7) 

 
(1) Cost of media sites and production is shown net of negotiated rent abatements with lessors. Refer to Note 6. 
(2) Other income comprises compensation recognised for compulsory acquisition of a leased sites, gain on sale of assets and gain on lease 

modifications. Refer to Note 5. 
(3) Pursuant to AASB 9, a portion of the interest rate derivative was deemed ineffective, and a fair value gain was reclassified to profit or loss. Refer to 

Note 8. 

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income / (loss) should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. 
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Consolidated statement of financial position 

as at 31 December 2022 
   
  Consolidated 

    
  31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 

 Notes $'000 $'000 
Current assets    
Cash and cash equivalents                 40,048               60,048  
Trade and other receivables 11              113,044               99,827  
Inventories  16                6,094                 5,006  
Other assets 17                14,290               26,878  
Total current assets                173,476            191,759  

     
Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment  12              151,359             168,426  
Right-of-use-assets 13              652,306             723,862  
Intangible assets  14              745,414            767,308  
Derivative assets 21                  5,466                       -    
Other assets 17                 3,874                 1,110  
Total non-current assets             1,558,419         1,660,706  

    
Total assets             1,731,895          1,852,465  

    
Current liabilities    
Trade and other payables 19                49,936              50,141  
Interest bearing lease liabilities 18              145,255            178,568  
Provisions 20                  3,420                 1,240  
Employee benefits                   9,352                 8,005  
Income tax payable  10                22,884                 9,227  
Total current liabilities                230,847            247,181  

    
Non-current liabilities    
Loans and borrowings 18                72,899             123,570  
Provisions 20                  8,424               14,018  
Employee benefits                   2,138                 2,570  
Interest bearing lease liabilities  18             609,742             649,603  
Derivative liabilities 21                        -                   5,102  
Deferred tax liability  10                  3,002                 7,777  
Total non-current liabilities               696,205             802,640  

    
Total liabilities                927,052          1,049,821  

    
Net assets                804,843            802,644  

    
Equity    
Share capital 22(a)              864,104            886,468  
Reserves 22(b)                33,485              25,516  
Accumulated losses                 (91,841)           (108,435) 
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company                805,748             803,549  

    
Non-controlling interest 22(c)                    (905)                  (905) 
Total equity                804,843             802,644  

 
The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

 

Consolidated statement of cash flows  

for the year ended 31 December 2022  

    
  Consolidated 

    

  31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
  Notes $'000 $'000 
Cash flows from operating activities    
Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and services tax)   642,037                            544,230  
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and services tax)    (371,278)                         (336,619) 
Cash generated from operations   270,759               207,611  

    
Interest paid   (40,232)                          (48,858) 
Interest received   481                                      45  
Income tax paid   (8,320)                              (2,717) 
Net cash generated from operating activities 30 222,688                156,081  

    
Cash flows from investing activities    
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  12  (23,952)                             (12,257) 
Acquisition of intangible assets 14  (3,085)                              (2,440) 
Loan to industry association   (3,109)                              (1,007) 
Disposal of subsidiary   1,193                                 2,163  
Transaction costs related to disposals   -                                    (310) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   63                                      53  
Net cash used in investing activities    (28,890)      (13,798) 

    
Cash flows from financing activities    
Payment of share buy back  (22,364) - 
Repayment of loans and borrowings   (50,000)                          (70,000) 
Payment of transaction costs related to borrowings and derivatives   (1,402)                                 (414) 
Payment of lease liabilities   (125,110)                           (91,863) 
Dividends paid in cash  (14,922)                                      -    
Net cash used in financing activities   (213,798)             (162,277) 

    
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (20,000)               (19,994) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  60,048                            80,042  
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   40,048                60,048  

         

 

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Consolidated statement of cash flows  

for the year ended 31 December 2022  

    
  Consolidated 

    

  31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
  Notes $'000 $'000 
Cash flows from operating activities    
Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and services tax)   642,037                            544,230  
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and services tax)    (371,278)                         (336,619) 
Cash generated from operations   270,759               207,611  

    
Interest paid   (40,232)                          (48,858) 
Interest received   481                                      45  
Income tax paid   (8,320)                              (2,717) 
Net cash generated from operating activities 30 222,688                156,081  

    
Cash flows from investing activities    
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  12  (23,952)                             (12,257) 
Acquisition of intangible assets 14  (3,085)                              (2,440) 
Loan to industry association   (3,109)                              (1,007) 
Disposal of subsidiary   1,193                                 2,163  
Transaction costs related to disposals   -                                    (310) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   63                                      53  
Net cash used in investing activities    (28,890)      (13,798) 

    
Cash flows from financing activities    
Payment of share buy back  (22,364) - 
Repayment of loans and borrowings   (50,000)                          (70,000) 
Payment of transaction costs related to borrowings and derivatives   (1,402)                                 (414) 
Payment of lease liabilities   (125,110)                           (91,863) 
Dividends paid in cash  (14,922)                                      -    
Net cash used in financing activities   (213,798)             (162,277) 

    
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (20,000)               (19,994) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  60,048                            80,042  
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   40,048                60,048  

         

 

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
 

1. Reporting entity 
 

oOh!media Limited is a company domiciled in Australia. The Company was incorporated on 7 October 2014 and listed on the 
Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) on 17 December 2014. The Company's registered office and principal place of business is at 
Level 2, 73 Miller Street, North Sydney, NSW 2060. 

The Annual Financial Report (consolidated financial statements) of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 
comprises the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group, and individually as Group entities), and the Group’s 
interests in associates and joint ventures. The comparative information represents the financial position of the Company as at 31 
December 2021 and the Group's performance for the period 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021. 

The Group is a for-profit entity and is primarily involved in outdoor media, production and advertising in Australia and New Zealand. 

 

2. Basis of accounting 
 

a) Statement of compliance 

The consolidated financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 
2001 (Cth). The consolidated financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the 
International Standards Board (IASB). 

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 February 2023. 

 
b) Basis of measurement 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following item in the 
consolidated statement of financial position: 

- Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value. 

 
c) Functional and presentation currency 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. The 
Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Corporations Instrument 2016/191 dated 1 April 2016 and in accordance with the instrument, 
all financial information presented in Australian dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated. 

 
d) Going concern   

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal 
business activities and realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The Group has, as a result of 
adopting AASB 16 in 2019, an excess of current liabilities over current assets totalling $57,371,000. The Group is generating positive 
operating cash flows and there is no indication that the Group will not be able to meet its obligations as and when they fall due and 
is forecast to continue doing so. 

 
e) Use of judgements and estimates 

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of the Group's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. 

 
i. Judgements 

 
Key judgements include the forecast performance of the Group, which at the time of this report has inherent uncertainty. These key 
judgements relate to the carrying value of the tangible and intangible assets and were made based on the internal and external 
available information. Should actual performance differ significantly from these assumptions there may be material changes to the 
carrying value of the assets listed above for future reporting periods. Assumptions with regards to the recoverability of goodwill 
allocated to Cash Generating Units are included in Note 15 Goodwill. 

 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
 

for the year ended 31 December 2022   

  Share 
capital     

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve 

Other 
equity  

reserve 

Cash 
flow 

hedge  
reserve 

Share-based 
payments 

reserve 

Accumulated 
losses  

Non-
controlling 

interest  
Total equity 

Consolidated  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
          
Balance at 1 January 2021 876,291 522 16,608 (9,632) 21,293 (98,147) (905) 806,030 
                  
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the period:                 
Loss for the period after income tax  - - - - - (10,288) - (10,288) 
Other comprehensive (loss) /income:                 
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges - - - 3,455 - - - 3,455 
De-designation of interest rate derivatives to the Consolidated Income Statement, net of tax - - - 2,502       2,502 
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - 272 - - - - - 272 
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the period - 272 - 5,957 - (10,288) - (4,059) 
                  
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity:                 
Contributions and distributions                 
Issue of ordinary shares (Employee Performance Rights) 10,177 - - - (10,177) - - - 
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions - - - - 673 - - 673 
Total transactions with owners of the Company 10,177 - - - (9,504) - - 673 
Balance at 31 December 2021 886,468 794 16,608 (3,675) 11,789 (108,435) (905) 802,644 
                  
Balance as at 1 January 2022 886,468 794 16,608 (3,675) 11,789 (108,435) (905) 802,644 
                  
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period:                 
Profit for the period after income tax - - - - - 31,516 - 31,516 
Other comprehensive income / (loss) :                 
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges - - - 7,118 - - - 7,118 
De-designation of interest rate derivatives to the Consolidated Income Statement, net of tax - - - (1,376)       (1,376) 
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - (1,782) - - - - - (1,782) 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period - (1,782) - 5,742 - 31,516 - 35,476 
                  
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity:                 
Contributions and distributions                 
Dividends paid - - - - - (14,922) - (14,922) 
Share buy back (22,364) - - - - - - (22,364) 
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions - - - - 4,009 - - 4,009 
Total transactions with owners of the Company (22,364) - - - 4,009 (14,922) - (33,277) 
Balance at 31 December 2022 864,104 (988) 16,608 2,067 15,798 (91,841) (905) 804,843 

 

 
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
 

1. Reporting entity 
 

oOh!media Limited is a company domiciled in Australia. The Company was incorporated on 7 October 2014 and listed on the 
Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) on 17 December 2014. The Company's registered office and principal place of business is at 
Level 2, 73 Miller Street, North Sydney, NSW 2060. 

The Annual Financial Report (consolidated financial statements) of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 
comprises the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group, and individually as Group entities), and the Group’s 
interests in associates and joint ventures. The comparative information represents the financial position of the Company as at 31 
December 2021 and the Group's performance for the period 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021. 

The Group is a for-profit entity and is primarily involved in outdoor media, production and advertising in Australia and New Zealand. 

 

2. Basis of accounting 
 

a) Statement of compliance 

The consolidated financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 
2001 (Cth). The consolidated financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the 
International Standards Board (IASB). 

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 February 2023. 

 
b) Basis of measurement 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following item in the 
consolidated statement of financial position: 

- Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value. 

 
c) Functional and presentation currency 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. The 
Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Corporations Instrument 2016/191 dated 1 April 2016 and in accordance with the instrument, 
all financial information presented in Australian dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated. 

 
d) Going concern   

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal 
business activities and realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The Group has, as a result of 
adopting AASB 16 in 2019, an excess of current liabilities over current assets totalling $57,371,000. The Group is generating positive 
operating cash flows and there is no indication that the Group will not be able to meet its obligations as and when they fall due and 
is forecast to continue doing so. 

 
e) Use of judgements and estimates 

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of the Group's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. 

 
i. Judgements 

 
Key judgements include the forecast performance of the Group, which at the time of this report has inherent uncertainty. These key 
judgements relate to the carrying value of the tangible and intangible assets and were made based on the internal and external 
available information. Should actual performance differ significantly from these assumptions there may be material changes to the 
carrying value of the assets listed above for future reporting periods. Assumptions with regards to the recoverability of goodwill 
allocated to Cash Generating Units are included in Note 15 Goodwill. 
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ii. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the 
year ending 31 December 2022 are included in the following notes: 

- Note 10 Income tax: key assumptions on uncertain future tax treatments; 
- Note 15 Goodwill: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts for impairment testing; and  
- Note 18 Loans and borrowings: lease terms. 

 
iii. Measurement of fair values 

 
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities. 

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that 
has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and which reports directly 
to the Chief Financial Officer. 

The finance team reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes 
or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to 
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of IFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such 
valuations should be classified. Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group’s Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee. 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as much as possible.  

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, 
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that 
is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change 
has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included Note 23 Fair values.  

  
f) Changes in accounting policies 

The accounting policies adopted in this report have been consistently applied to each entity in the Group and are consistent with 
those of the previous year. 

 
g) New standards and interpretations 

The Group has adopted all the relevant new, revised, or amended Accounting Standards and interpretations issued by the AASB 
which are mandatory for the current and comparative reporting period. 

 
3. Significant accounting policies 
 

Accounting policies can be found throughout the notes to these financial statements, beneath the appropriate note disclosure. For 
changes in the accounting policy in the period refer to Note 2(f) Changes in accounting policies.    
   

a) Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of oOh!media Limited and the results of 
subsidiaries. oOh!media Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to in these consolidated financial statements as ‘the Group’. 

 
i. Subsidiaries 

 
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated 
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The Group controls an entity 
when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those 
returns through its power over the entity. 

 
ii. Investments in equity-accounted investees 

 
The Group’s interest in equity-accounted investees represents its interest in a joint venture. A joint venture is an arrangement in 
which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its 

 

assets and obligations for its liabilities. The Group’s interest in associates and the joint venture are accounted for using the equity 
method. They are initially recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the 
consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity-
accounted investees, until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases. 
 

iii. Transactions eliminated on consolidation 
 
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are 
eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to 
the extent of the Group’s interest in that investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only 
to the extent that there is no evidence of 
impairment.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 
iv. Non-controlling interests (NCI) 

 
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the 
Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.  
 

b) Income tax – refer to Note 10 Income tax 

c) Receivables and revenue recognition – refer to Note 11 Trade and other receivables and Note 5 Revenue and other 
income 

d) Plant and equipment – refer to Note 12 Property, plant and equipment 

e) Right-of-use assets – refer to Note 13 Right-of-use assets 

f) Intangibles – refer to Note 14 Intangible assets  

g) Inventories – refer to Note 16 Inventories 

h) Financial instruments – refer to Note 24 Financial risk management 

i) Leases – refer to Note 18 Loans and borrowings 

j) Trade and other payables – refer to Note 19 Trade and other payables 

k) Employee benefits – refer to Note 9 Share-based payments 

l) Cash and cash equivalents – refer to Note 30 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities 

m) Impairment of assets – refer to Note 15 Goodwill 

n) Foreign currency translation  - refer to Note 22 Capital and reserves 

 
i. Transactions and balances 

 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates 
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 
ii. Foreign operations 

 
The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which have the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) 
that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as 
follows: 

 
- Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance 

sheet; 
- Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates 

unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the: 
• Cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are 

translated at the dates of the transactions; 
• All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity. 
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assets and obligations for its liabilities. The Group’s interest in associates and the joint venture are accounted for using the equity 
method. They are initially recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the 
consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity-
accounted investees, until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases. 
 

iii. Transactions eliminated on consolidation 
 
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are 
eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to 
the extent of the Group’s interest in that investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only 
to the extent that there is no evidence of 
impairment.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 
iv. Non-controlling interests (NCI) 

 
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the 
Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.  
 

b) Income tax – refer to Note 10 Income tax 

c) Receivables and revenue recognition – refer to Note 11 Trade and other receivables and Note 5 Revenue and other 
income 

d) Plant and equipment – refer to Note 12 Property, plant and equipment 

e) Right-of-use assets – refer to Note 13 Right-of-use assets 

f) Intangibles – refer to Note 14 Intangible assets  

g) Inventories – refer to Note 16 Inventories 

h) Financial instruments – refer to Note 24 Financial risk management 

i) Leases – refer to Note 18 Loans and borrowings 

j) Trade and other payables – refer to Note 19 Trade and other payables 

k) Employee benefits – refer to Note 9 Share-based payments 

l) Cash and cash equivalents – refer to Note 30 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities 

m) Impairment of assets – refer to Note 15 Goodwill 

n) Foreign currency translation  - refer to Note 22 Capital and reserves 

 
i. Transactions and balances 

 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates 
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 
ii. Foreign operations 

 
The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which have the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) 
that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as 
follows: 

 
- Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance 

sheet; 
- Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates 

unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the: 
• Cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are 

translated at the dates of the transactions; 
• All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity. 
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On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign operations, and of 
borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a 
foreign operation is sold, ceases operation or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, a proportionate 
share of such exchange differences are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, as part of the gain or loss on 
sale where applicable. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as 
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate. 

 
o) Borrowings – refer to Note 18 Loans and borrowings 

p) Finance income and finance costs – refer to Note 8 Net finance costs 

q) Maintenance and repairs – refer to Note 12 Property, plant and equipment 

r) Provisions – refer to Note 20 Provisions 

s) Goods and services tax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable 
from the taxation authority. Operating cash flows are recognised inclusive of the associated GST. In this case, it is recognised as 
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the 
amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included 
with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 

t) Share capital – refer to Note 22 Capital and reserves 

u) Glossary – refer to glossary of defined terms 

 

4. Operating segments 
 

a) Basis for segmentation 

The Group operates as a single segment providing a range of Out-of-Home advertising solutions. 

 
b) Reconciliation of Adjusted Underlying EBITDA 

The Board and executive management review the Adjusted Underlying Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation 
(EBITDA)  to monitor business performance because they believe that it provides a better representation of financial performance in 
the ordinary course of business.

   

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Adjusted Underlying EBITDA   127,096  77,553 
Fixed rent obligations (1)  158,823  158,702 
Underlying EBITDA 285,919 236,255 
Other income (2)  2,136   4,026 
Statutory EBITDA   288,055 240,281 
Share of (loss) / profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax 11 (90) 
Amortisation  (23,597) (25,095) 
Depreciation  (177,068) (183,966) 
Net finance costs  (41,246) (46,669) 
Profit / (loss) before income tax  46,155  (15,539) 

 
 

(1) Includes rent of $148,745,000 excluded from Cost of media sites and production and $10,078,000 from Other expenses under AASB 16. Abatements 
for fixed rent, due up to 31 December 2022, that qualified for practical expedients relief of $10,850,000 and $202,000 relating to unconditional 
abatements that did not qualify for application of the practical expedient accounted for as part of a lease modification, refer Note 6 Rent 
concessions.  

(2) See Note 5 Revenue and other income for more details. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5. Revenue and other income 
 
Revenue by Product 

Key information relating to the Group's financial performance is detailed below. This is also included in management reports 
reviewed by the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker (the Board).  

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Street and Rail (1) 196,520 182,072 
Road 191,094 158,477 
Retail 142,913 124,995 
Fly 33,822 12,243 
Locate 17,445 11,839 
Other (2) 10,829 14,108 
Revenue  592,623 503,734 

 
(1) Street and Rail revenue includes advertising, production, sale of street furniture, and cleaning and maintenance revenue. 
(2) Other revenues include subsidiary entities Cactus and Junkee, noting Junkee was disposed of on 7 December 2021. 

 
With regards to the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations, 77% (2021: 81%) of the Group’s revenue was recognised over 
time and 23% (2021: 19%) was recognised at a point in time.  

 
Other income

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Compensation for compulsory acquisition - 1,698 
Disposal of subsidiary - 2,043 
Gain on lease modification 2,136 285 
Other income 2,136 4,026 

 
Accounting policy: Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of the amount of goods and services tax. 
Revenue from core operating activities consists of Out Of Home advertising revenues based on fixed price contracts. Revenue from 
Out Of Home advertising is recognised equally on a pro rata basis over the period in which the advertising is on display. Revenue for 
media production work is recognised on completion of the assignment. Revenue is recognised on a gross basis with commissions 
payable to advertising and media agencies recognised as expenses in 'Cost of media sites and production'. 

In accordance with AASB 15, the Group has applied the exemption not to disclose revenue from unfulfilled performance obligations, 
as performance obligations form part of a contract that has an original term of one year or less. 

 
Contract balances 

The timing of revenue recognition, invoicing, and cash collections results in accounts receivable, un-invoiced receivables (contract 
assets), and customer advances (contract liabilities) on the consolidated statement of financial position. Media contracts are all 
billed in accordance with agreed-upon contractual terms and pricing, either upfront, at periodic intervals (e.g. lunar period) or upon 
achievement of contractual milestones. These assets and liabilities are reported on the consolidated statement of financial position 
on a contract-by-contract basis at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the contract asset and liability balances were not 
materially impacted by any other factors during the year ended 31 December 2022.  

Revenue recognised in 2022 that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year was $7,936,000. 
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5. Revenue and other income 
 
Revenue by Product 

Key information relating to the Group's financial performance is detailed below. This is also included in management reports 
reviewed by the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker (the Board).  

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Street and Rail (1) 196,520 182,072 
Road 191,094 158,477 
Retail 142,913 124,995 
Fly 33,822 12,243 
Locate 17,445 11,839 
Other (2) 10,829 14,108 
Revenue  592,623 503,734 

 
(1) Street and Rail revenue includes advertising, production, sale of street furniture, and cleaning and maintenance revenue. 
(2) Other revenues include subsidiary entities Cactus and Junkee, noting Junkee was disposed of on 7 December 2021. 

 
With regards to the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations, 77% (2021: 81%) of the Group’s revenue was recognised over 
time and 23% (2021: 19%) was recognised at a point in time.  

 
Other income

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Compensation for compulsory acquisition - 1,698 
Disposal of subsidiary - 2,043 
Gain on lease modification 2,136 285 
Other income 2,136 4,026 

 
Accounting policy: Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of the amount of goods and services tax. 
Revenue from core operating activities consists of Out Of Home advertising revenues based on fixed price contracts. Revenue from 
Out Of Home advertising is recognised equally on a pro rata basis over the period in which the advertising is on display. Revenue for 
media production work is recognised on completion of the assignment. Revenue is recognised on a gross basis with commissions 
payable to advertising and media agencies recognised as expenses in 'Cost of media sites and production'. 

In accordance with AASB 15, the Group has applied the exemption not to disclose revenue from unfulfilled performance obligations, 
as performance obligations form part of a contract that has an original term of one year or less. 

 
Contract balances 

The timing of revenue recognition, invoicing, and cash collections results in accounts receivable, un-invoiced receivables (contract 
assets), and customer advances (contract liabilities) on the consolidated statement of financial position. Media contracts are all 
billed in accordance with agreed-upon contractual terms and pricing, either upfront, at periodic intervals (e.g. lunar period) or upon 
achievement of contractual milestones. These assets and liabilities are reported on the consolidated statement of financial position 
on a contract-by-contract basis at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the contract asset and liability balances were not 
materially impacted by any other factors during the year ended 31 December 2022.  

Revenue recognised in 2022 that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year was $7,936,000. 
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6. Rent concessions 
 

 31 Dec 22 30 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 
Rent abatements - COVID-19 practical expedient (1) 10,850 13,939 
Variable rent (3,528) (3,146) 
Net rent abatement 7,322 10,793 

   
Net cost reduction 7,322 10,793 

 
(1) Following the IFRC decision, the Group have taken up the practical expedients detailed under AASB 16 Lease (para 16A), allowing the Group 

not to assess whether eligible rent concessions that are a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications.  

Rent abatements – COVID-19 practical expedient 

Fixed rent abatements of $10,850,000 were given for rent that would have normally been due for the period, however the 
commercial partners have provided rent relief due to the COVID-19 impact, either as a waiver or as a conversion to variable rent.  

 

7. Other expenses 
 

 31 Dec 22 30 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Office expenses 2,355 3,618 
Information technology and communications expenses 9,055 9,322 
Taxes and charges 988 1,609 
Insurances 3,775 3,433 
Loss on sale of assets 231 1,007 
Travel and entertainment 3,510 1,328 
Other expenses 189 (134) 
Other expenses 20,103 20,183 

 

8. Net finance costs 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Finance income (481) (598) 
   

Interest expense on bank borrowings 9,976 7,022 
Amortisation of debt facility establishment costs 735 842 
Interest expense on lease liabilities 33,382 34,680 
Hedge ineffectiveness (990) 2,221 
De-designation of cash flow hedges (1,376) 2,502 
Finance costs 41,727 47,267 

   
Net finance costs  41,246 46,669 

 
Accounting policy: Finance income and finance costs 

 
i) Finance income 

Finance income is recognised as income in the period in which it is earned. Finance income includes interest income, which is 
recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method. 

 
ii) Finance costs 

Finance costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred using the effective interest method. Finance costs 
include interest on bank borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with arrangement of borrowings, and interest expense on 
lease liabilities. Refer to Note 18 Loans and borrowings.  
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9. Share-based payments  
 
Description of the share-based payment arrangements 

As at 31 December 2022 the Group had the following share-based payment arrangements: 

Performance rights granted to senior executives that existed during the period are as follows: 

 
Grant date Vesting date  Number granted  

Tranche #6a 04-Mar-19 15-Feb-22 1,146,035 
Tranche #6b 16-May-19 15-Feb-22 192,940 
Tranche #7 30-Nov-20 28-Feb-23 3,453,482 
Tranche #8 10-May-21 28-Feb-24 1,344,890 
Tranche #9a 05-May-22 28-Feb-25 988,395 
Tranche #9b 16-May-22 28-Feb-25 443,892 

Total performance rights   7,569,634 
Vesting conditions for the performance rights are as follows: 

Tranche #6a/b: Two LTI performance hurdles, each measured over a 3-year performance period and split 75%/25% of the target 
award as follows: 

- Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of oOh!media’s Earnings Per Share (EPS) over a three-year performance period 
(as per the full year audited financial results) 

Company’s CAGR of EPS over the Performance Period % of Rights that Vest in the EPS tranche 
Less than 6% CAGR Nil 
6% CAGR (threshold performance target) 50% 
Between 6% and 10% CAGR Straight line pro rata Vesting between 50% and 100% 
10% CAGR (stretch performance target) 100% 
Between 10% and 14% CAGR Straight line pro rata Vesting between 100% and 150% 
14% CAGR or above (exceptional performance target) 150% 

 
- Relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR) over a three-year performance period assessed against the ASX200 index (excluding 

Financials, Industrials and Materials), representing 25% of the award. 

Tranche #7: Three LTI performance hurdles, each measured over a 3-year performance period and each representing 1/3 of the 
target award: 

- Free Cash Flow per share (FCF), achievement of 6.33 cents per share, calculated as: (operating cash flow less capital 
expenditure and finance lease liabilities paid in CY22) / weighted number of issued shares. 

- Return on Invested Capital (ROIC), achievement of 12.9%, calculated as CY22 Adjusted Underlying EBITDA less fixed 
costs/invested capital. 

- Relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR) assessed against the ASX200 index (excluding Financials, Industrials and Materials). 

Tranche #8: Three LTI performance hurdles, each measured over a 3-year performance period and each representing 1/3 of the 
target award: 

- Free Cash Flow per share (FCF), achievement of 12.7 cents per share, calculated as: (operating cash flow less capital 
expenditure and finance lease liabilities paid in CY23)/weighted number of issued shares. 

- Return on Invested Capital (ROIC), achievement of 15.3%, calculated as CY23 Adjusted Underlying EBITDA less fixed 
costs/invested capital. 

- Relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR) assessed against the ASX200 index (excluding Financials, Industrials and Materials. 

Tranche #9a/b: Three LTI performance hurdles, each measured over a 3-year performance period and each representing 1/3 of the 
target award: 

- Cumulative Free Cash Flow per share (CFCF), achievement of 24.8cents per share, calculated as (operating cash flow 
CY22-CY24 less capital expenditure and finance lease liabilities paid over CY22-CY24) / weighted number of issued shares. 

- Return on Invested Capital (ROIC), achievement of 16.5%, calculated as (CY24 Adjusted Underlying EBITDA less fixed costs) / 
invested capital. 

- Relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR) assessed against the ASX200 index (excluding Financials, Industrials and Materials). 

 
Long-term incentive plan - performance rights 

Tranche #6 performance rights which were due to vest on 15 February 2022, did not meet the vesting conditions and the LTI program 
for 2019 shares lapsed. 

Tranche #9a and #9b were issued in May 2022. 
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Reconciliation of performance rights 

The number of performance rights on issue during the year ended 31 December 2022 are illustrated below:  

 Number of rights Face Value 

 # $'000 
Outstanding at 1 January 2022 5,977,854 12,755 
Exercised during the period -                                    

-    
-                                     
-    Granted during the period 1,432,287 1,886 

Lapsed (1,179,482) (3,789) 
Outstanding at 31 December 2022 6,230,659 10,852 
Exercisable at 31 December 2022 -                                    

-    
-                                     
-     

Measurement of fair values 

The fair value of the share-based payment plan was measured based on the Monte Carlo and Binomial models. The inputs used in 
the measurement of the fair values at grant date were as follows: 

 

 
 
Fair value of performance rights and assumptions 

Tranche #6a Tranche #6b Tranche #7 Tranche #8 Tranche #9a Tranche #9b 

Share price at grant date $3.49 $3.75 $1.74 $1.62 $1.67 $1.52 
5-day VWAP at grant date $3.58 $3.63 $1.70 - - - 
20-day VWAP at 31 Dec 20 - - - $1.76 - - 
20-day VWAP at 31 Dec 21 - - - - $1.69 $1.69 
Fair value at grant date (EPS hurdle) $3.17 $3.43 - - - - 
Fair value at grant date (TSR hurdle) $1.76 $2.07 $0.58 $1.01 $1.01 $0.86 
Fair value at grant date (FCF hurdle) - - $1.64 $1.58 - - 
Fair value at grant date (CFCF hurdle) - - - - $1.54 $1.40 
Fair value at grant date (ROIC hurdle) - - $1.64 $1.58 $1.54 $1.40 
Exercise price Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Expected volatility 32.20% 31.50% 60.00% 50.00% 40.00% 45.00% 
Expected life 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 
Expected dividends 3.40% 3.40% 1.00% 1.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.69% 1.19% 0.11% 0.11% 2.96% 2.84% 

 
 
Accounting policy: Employee benefits 

 
i) Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be 
paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

 
ii) Long service leave   

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of 
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected 
unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and 
periods of service. 

Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on corporate bonds with terms to maturity and 
currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. Benefits falling more than 12 months after the end of 
the reporting period are classified as non-current. 

 
iii) Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an employee 
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably 
committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of 
withdrawal or to providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due 
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value and classified as non-current. 
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iv) Defined contribution plans 

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. Prepaid contributions are 
recognised as an asset to the extent a cash refund or reduction of future payments is available. 

Employee benefits expense includes contributions to defined contribution plans of $8,732,000 for the current reporting period (2021: 
$8,498,000). 

 

10. Income tax 
 
a) Tax recognised in profit or loss 

   

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Current tax expense   
Current tax expense 22,423 10,637 
Adjustment for prior periods (548) (520) 
Total current tax expense / (benefit) 21,875 10,117 
Deferred tax (benefit) / expense   
Origination and reversal of temporary difference (7,236) (15,368) 
Total deferred tax (benefit) / expense (7,236) (15,368) 
Total income tax expense / (benefit) 14,639 (5,251) 

Tax recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) 

 2022 2021 

  Before tax   Tax 
(expense)   Net of tax   Before tax   Tax 

(expense)   Net of tax  
 $'000 $'000  $'000   $'000  $'000  $'000  

Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 8,202 (2,460) 5,742 8,510 (2,553) 5,957 
 

Reconciliation between income tax expense / (benefit) and pre-tax profit / (loss)

   

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Profit / (loss) after income tax for the year 31,516 (10,288) 
Total income tax expense / (benefit) 14,639 (5,251) 
Profit / (loss) before income tax 46,155                     (15,539) 
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 30% (2021: 30%) 13,847 (4,662) 
Effect of tax rate in foreign jurisdictions (219) (143) 
Non-deductible expenses 1,681 628 
Non-assessable income (119) (579) 
Effect of share of (profit) / loss of equity accounted investees (3) 25 
Over provided in prior years (548) (520) 
Total income tax expenses / (benefit) 14,639 (5,251) 

 
 
The effective tax rate is calculated as Company income tax expense divided by profit before income tax, adjusted for post-tax share 
of results of equity-accounted investees.

   

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Profit / (loss) from ordinary activities before income tax 46,155 (15,539) 
(Less) / Add: Post-tax share of results of equity-accounted investees (11) 90 
Profit / (loss) before income tax 46,144                     (15,449) 
Income tax expenses / (benefit) 14,639 (5,251) 
Total income tax expense / (benefit) 31.7% 34.0% 
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b) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities 

 2022 
 Balance 

1 Jan 22 
Recognised in 

profit or loss 
Recognised in 

Goodwill  
Recognised in 

OCI 
Balance 

31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Property, plant and equipment 2,394  (1,005) - -  1,389  
Right-of-use asset (216,233)  21,300  - -  (194,933) 
Cash flow hedges 1,530  (709) - (2,461)  (1,640) 
Other capital costs deductible over 5 years  2,245  (1,133) - -  1,112  
Accrued expenses 4,095  (674) - -  3,421  
Provisions 5,101  (1,059) - -  4,042  
Employee benefits provision 3,171  275  - -  3,446  
Licences acquired (40,573)  5,342  - -  (35,231) 
Other intangibles (3,198)  782  - -  (2,416) 
Unearned revenue 819  1,303  - -  2,122  
Leases 232,872  (17,186) - -  215,686  
Total tax assets / (liabilities) (7,777)  7,236 - (2,461) (3,002) 

      
      
 2021 

 Balance 
1 Jan 21 

Recognised in 
profit or loss 

Recognised in 
Goodwill 

Recognised in 
OCI 

Balance 
31 Dec 21 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Property, plant and equipment (1,701) 5,248 (1,153) - 2,394 
Right-of-use asset (217,113) 880 - - (216,233) 
Transaction costs related to acquisitions 387 (387) - - - 
Cash flow hedges 5,500 (1,417) - (2,553) 1,530 
Other capital costs deductible over 5 years  3,101 (856) - - 2,245 
Accrued expenses 911 3,184 - - 4,095 
Provisions 5,186 (85) - - 5,101 
Employee benefits provision 3,048 123 - - 3,171 
Licences acquired (43,789) 4,542 (1,326) - (40,573) 
Other intangibles (3,279) 81 - - (3,198) 
Unearned revenue 278 (155) - - 123 
Leases 229,053 3,819 - - 232,872 
Other 305 391 - - 696 
Total tax assets / (liabilities) (18,113) 15,368 (2,479) (2,553) (7,777) 

   

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Deferred tax assets 2,008 - 
Deferred tax liabilities (5,010) (7,777) 
Net deferred tax liability (3,002)                     (7,777) 

 
(1) During 2021 the Group has reassessed the carrying value of some of the Australian Plant and Equipment assets acquired as part of the Adshel 

acquisition in 2018, with a corresponding adjustment to Licences, Goodwill and Tax – See Note 12 Property, plant and equipment. 

 
Contingent liability: Deductibility of historic upfront payments creating an uncertain tax position 

Prior to the acquisition of Adshel in September 2018, Adshel management had negotiated $21,000,000 of upfront payments for street 
furniture contracts with two metro councils. The Company treated these payments as deductible when paid. For accounting 
purposes, the payments are being amortised over the terms of the contracts. The Company has recognised deferred tax liabilities for 
the unamortised balances. The Australian Taxation Office (ATO) has formed a view that the payments may be capital in nature and 
not deductible and has commenced an audit of the Company’s tax treatment. The Company has obtained specialist tax advice 
and believes its current tax treatment is correct. The Company has engaged legal advisors and will defend its position. If the 
Company is unsuccessful, the Company would be required to raise $6,300,000 as a current tax liability and may be exposed to 
penalties and interest. At 31 December 2022 the deferred tax liability related to upfront payments is $4,712,000. This matter is not 
expected to be resolved until late into 2023 or beyond. 

Accounting policy: Income tax 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a 
business combination or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income (OCI).  
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Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the 
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the 
tax amount expected to be paid or received. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets are 
recovered, or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantially enacted for each jurisdiction. The 
relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred 
tax asset or liability. Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.    

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of 
investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and 
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

With regards to measuring deferred tax consequences on licences and brands, management considers the tax consequences of 
recovery through use and then disposal separately. Under this approach the tax base from use (nil as the licences and brands are 
not depreciable for tax) is considered separate from the tax base from disposal (capital gains tax value). This results in a taxable 
temporary difference (deferred tax liability) on revenue account and a deductible temporary difference (deferred tax asset) on 
capital account. As it is not currently probable that future capital gains will be made, the deferred tax asset has not been 
recognised. 
     
 
Tax consolidation legislation 

oOh!media Limited and its wholly owned Australian controlled subsidiaries apply the tax consolidation legislation. 

The deferred tax balances recognised by the parent entity and the consolidated entity in relation to wholly owned entities joining the 
tax consolidated group are initially measured and remeasured based on the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of those 
entities at the level of the tax consolidated group and their tax values, as applicable under the tax consolidation legislation. 

oOh!media Limited, as the head entity in the tax consolidated group, recognises current and deferred tax amounts relating to 
transactions, events and balances of the controlled entities in this group as if those transactions, events and balances were its own, in 
addition to the current and deferred tax amounts arising in relation to its own transactions, events and balances. Amounts receivable 
or payable under a tax funding agreement with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as tax-related amounts receivable or 
payable. Expenses and revenues arising under the tax funding agreement are recognised as a component of income tax (expense) 
/ benefit. 

In accordance with Urgent Issues Group Interpretation 1052 "Tax Consolidation Accounting", the controlled entities in the tax 
consolidated group account for their own deferred tax balances, except for those relating to tax losses. 

 

11. Trade and other receivables 
 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Trade receivables 114,187 99,797 
Allowance for impairment of receivables (1,144) (1,145) 

 113,043                     98,652  
Other receivables (1) 1 1,175 
Total trade and other receivables 113,044                     99,827  

(1) In December 2021 oOh!media sold Junkee Media Pty Ltd to Racat 3 Pty Ltd (now known as Scout Publishing Pty Ltd).  

Information on the Group's exposure to credit and market risks and impairment losses for trade and other receivables are included in 
Note 24 Financial risk management. 

 
Accounting policy: Trade receivables 

All trade debtors are recognised at the amount receivable as they are due for settlement no more than 45 days from the date of 
recognition. Recoverability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are 
written off. A provision for doubtful receivables is calculated using an expected credit losses provision matrix. The provision matrix is 
based on the Group's historical observed default rates, adjusted for forward looking estimates. The historical observed default rates 
are updated to reflect current and forecast credit conditions on each reporting date. Provisions for specific receivables are 
recognised in addition to the general provision originating from the expected credit losses matrix.  

The amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position with a corresponding charge 
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
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12.  Property, plant and equipment  
 
Reconciliation of carrying amount      

 2022 
 Leasehold 

improvements Plant & equipment Total 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Cost    
Balance as at 1 January 2022                      12,753                    383,445                 396,198  
Additions  481   23,471   23,952  
Disposals  (19)  (13,018)  (13,037) 
Reclassification  (185)  (5,829)  (6,014) 
Effects of movement in exchange rates  (14) (887)  (901) 
As at December 2022 13,016 387,182  400,198 

    

Accumulated depreciation    

Balance as at 1 January 2022                     (8,985)                   (218,787)                  (227,772) 
Depreciation for the year  (703)  (32,480)  (33,183) 
Disposals  28   11,621   11,649  
Reclassification  (39)  99   60  
Effects of movements in exchange rates 4 403 407 
As at December 2022  (9,695)  (239,144)  (248,839) 

    
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022  3,321  148,038  151,359  

    
 2021 
 Leasehold 

improvements Plant & equipment Total 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Cost    
Balance as at 1 January 2021 11,440 391,547 402,987 
Additions 1,299 10,958 12,257 
Disposals (18) (1,402) (1,420) 
Reclassification 30 1,079 1,109 
Adjustments - (19,091) (19,091) 
Effects of movement in exchange rates 2 354 356 
As at December 2021                      12,753                    383,445                 396,198  

    
Accumulated depreciation    
Balance as at 1 January 2021 (7,967) (180,815) (188,782) 
Depreciation for the year (1,032) (42,809) (43,841) 
Disposals 11 71 82 
Reclassification -  - - 
Adjustments 4  4,908 4,912 
Effects of movements in exchange rates (1) (142) (143) 
As at December 2021                     (8,985)                   (218,787)                  (227,772) 

    
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021                       3,768                   164,658                   168,426 

 
During 2021 the Group reassessed the carrying value of some of the Australian plant and equipment assets acquired as part of the 
Adshel acquisition in 2018, with a corresponding adjustment to Licences, Goodwill and Tax: 

 1 Jan 21 
 $'000 

Plant and Equipment (14,485) 
Licenses 4,421 
Goodwill 12,544 
Income tax payable (616) 
Deferred tax liability (1,864) 
Total - 
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Accounting policy: Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Historical 
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in 
which they are incurred. 

Within the Group, depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write-off the cost of each item of plant and equipment over its 
estimated remaining useful life (less the estimated residual value). Estimates of remaining useful lives are made on a regular basis for 
all assets, with annual reassessments for major items. The expected useful lives are as follows: 

- Leasehold improvements 2-10 years; and 
- Plant and equipment 2-20 years. 
 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These are included in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

 
Accounting policy: Maintenance and repairs 

Certain plant and equipment are required to be overhauled on a regular basis. This is managed as part of an ongoing major cyclical 
maintenance program. The costs of this maintenance are charged as expenses as incurred, except where they relate to the 
replacement of a component of an asset, in which case the costs are capitalised and depreciated over their useful lives. Other 
routine operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals are charged as expenses as incurred. 

   

13.  Right-of-use assets 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Balance as at 1 January 723,862 727,243 
Depreciation for the year  (143,885) (140,125) 
Additions, modifications and remeasurements 74,299   141,115 
Disposals  (1,970)    (4,371) 
As at 31 December  652,306                    723,862  

 

Based on the total number of active leases, 90% of right-of-use assets are property leases where the Company has site structures. The 
remainder are warehouses, offices, and miscellaneous leases. 

 
Accounting policy: Right-of-use - intangible assets 

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially 
measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term using the straight-line method.  

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the consideration for a lease, that was not part of its original terms and 
conditions. Common lease modifications include, for example: increasing the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or 
more underlying assets; decreasing the scope of the lease by removing the right to use one or more underlying assets or shortening 
the contractual lease term; increasing the scope of the lease by extending the contractual lease term; and changing the 
consideration in the lease by increasing or decreasing the lease payments. Changes that result from renegotiations and changes to 
the terms of the original contract are lease modifications.  

When the right to use one or more underlying assets is removed, a corresponding adjustment is made to decrease the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the lease. The Group shall then recognise in profit or loss (if any) relating to the termination 
of the lease and making corresponding adjustments to the lease liabilities.  
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14. Intangible assets  
 
Reconciliation of carrying amount 

 2022 
 Brands Goodwill Licences Software Total 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Cost      
Balance as at 1 January 2022 9,000 614,362 258,774 42,375 924,511 
Additions - - -  3,085   3,085  
Reclassification - - (81)  (968)  (1,049) 
Effects of movement in exchange rates - -  (549)  12  (537) 
As at December 2022 9,000 614,362 258,144 44,504 926,010 

      
Accumulated depreciation and impairments      
Balance as at 1 January 2022 (5,951) (7,179) (125,409) (18,664) (157,203) 
Depreciation for the year (505) - (18,488) (4,604) (23,597) 
Reclassification - - 14 - 14 
Effects of movements in exchange rates - - 170 20 190 
As at December 2022 (6,456) (7,179) (143,713) (23,248) (180,596) 

      
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 2,544 607,183 114,431 21,256 745,414 

 
 
 
 
  

      

 2021 

 Brands Goodwill Licences Software Total 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Cost      
Balance as at 1 January 2021 9,783 601,818 256,506 41,885 909,992 
Additions - - - 2,440 2,440 
Disposals (796) - (3,194) (463) (4,453) 
Reclassification - - - (1,109) (1,109) 
Adjustments 13 12,544 5,382 (381) 17,558 
Effects of movement in exchange rates - - 80 3 83 
As at December 2021 9,000 614,362 258,774 42,375 924,511 

      
Accumulated depreciation and impairments      
Balance as at 1 January 2021      
Depreciation for the year (6,149) (7,179) (107,271) (14,898) (135,497) 
Disposals (598) - (20,159) (4,338) (25,095) 
Reclassification 796 - 3,194 463 4,453 
Effects of movements in exchange rates - - (1,148) 109 (1,039) 
As at December 2021 - - (25) - (25) 

 (5,951) (7,179) (125,409) (18,664) (157,203) 
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 3,049 607,183 133,365 23,711 767,308 

 
During 2021 the Group reassessed the carrying value of some of the Australian Plant and Equipment assets acquired as part of the 
Adshel acquisition in 2018, with a corresponding adjustment to Licences, Goodwill and Tax – See Note 12 Property plant and 
equipment. 
 
Accounting policy: Intangible assets 

 
i) Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill 
acquired in business combinations is not amortised. Instead, goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is 
allocated to cash generating units for impairment testing. Refer to Note 15 Non-current assets for further information. 

 
ii) Licences 

Licences represent the rights and relationships associated with acquired site leases and the associated new business revenue 
streams. Licences are amortised over their expected useful life.   
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iii) Software 

Software that is acquired by the Group and has a finite useful life is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses.  

 
iv) Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated to write-off the cost of intangible assets less estimated residual values using the straight-line method over 
their estimated useful lives and is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income. The 
estimated useful lives are as follows: 

- Licences 11-15 years; 
- Brands 2-15 years; and 
- Software 3-7 years.  
 
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.   
 
 

15. Goodwill 
 
Cash generating units (CGUs) for the purpose of goodwill impairment testing have been identified as follows for the year ended 31 
December 2022: Australia, New Zealand and Cactus. The independence of cash inflows is assessed in identifying CGUs. 

Goodwill is allocated to CGUs as shown below: 
 

 Australia New Zealand Cactus Total 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Goodwill 527,389 76,877 2,917 607,183 
 

The recoverable amount of the goodwill allocated to the Group’s CGUs was determined using the fair value less costs to sell 
approach. This was determined by discounting five years of future cash flows expected to be generated from the continuing use of 
the units followed by a terminal value, less the notional cost of disposing of the assets. 
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the carrying value of assets allocated to each CGU is supported by their recoverable 
amount and no impairment loss was recorded. 
The key assumptions of the impairment testing are: 

• Annual revenue based on the latest management forecast of post-COVID recovery and share gains from other media for 
the next twelve months, plus normalised compound annual growth rates from 2023 to 2027 for Australia of 7.6%, New 
Zealand of 10.0%, and 6.2% for Cactus 

• EBITDA margins improving based on revenue growth assumptions, assessing lease renewal outcomes, and other cost 
increases in line with expected CPI 

• Terminal growth rate: Australia and New Zealand 3.0%, and Cactus 2.0% 
• Discount rate post-tax: Australia 10.1% (2021: 9.8%), New Zealand 11.6% (unchanged from 2021), Cactus 11.9% (2021: 11.8%) 

Management’s best estimate of the impact of future trends in the media industry are based on historical and projection data from 
both external and internal sources. These assessments include assumptions for structural growth in the Out of Home industry, which is 
in line with the OMA’s January 2023 published projection of industry revenue growth of 9% CAGR over this period, and a stretch goal 
of 11% CAGR. 

Sensitivity analysis undertaken on the assumptions mentioned above indicate that no reasonably possible change would result in an 
impairment. 

 
Accounting policy: Impairment of assets 

Non-financial assets    

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually 
for impairment.  

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use 
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to 
CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 
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The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Fair value less costs of 
disposal is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.  

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to 
the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis. 

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

The carrying value of assets allocated to each CGU is supported by their recoverable amount. 

 

16.  Inventories  
 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Gross value of inventories 6,746 5,801 

Provision for obsolescent stock (652) (795) 
Net value of inventories 6,094                      5,006 

 

Cost of inventory recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as cost of sales in 2022 was $3,899,000 (2021: 
$3,416,000). This includes write downs or reversals of inventory in 2022 of $290,000 (2021: $243,000) 

Accounting policy: Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of original cost and replacement cost. The cost of inventories are based on first in first out 
methodology. 

 

17.  Other assets 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Current   
Prepayments 4,531 7,386 
Contract assets 9,510 19,160 
Other assets 249 332 
Total current other assets 14,290                     26,878 

   
Non-current   
Other assets 3,874 1,110 
Total non-current other assets 3,874                    1,110 
Total other assets 18,164                    27,988  

 
 

18.  Loans and borrowings 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Current   
Interest bearing lease liabilities 145,255 178,568 
Total current borrowings 145,255                    178,568  

   
Non-current   
Bank loan 75,000 125,000 
Unamortised borrowing costs (2,101) (1,430) 
Interest bearing lease liabilities 609,742 649,603 
Total non-current borrowings 682,641                   773,173  
Total loans and borrowings 827,896                    951,741  

 
 
Bank loans represent debt facilities from a syndicate of lending banks, with a facility limit of $350,000,000. The banking syndicate has 
security over all assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries. The debt facilities expire in June 2026. 

66 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2022

  



 

Information about the Group's exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks is included in Note 24 Financial risk 
management. 

 
Accounting Policy: Borrowings  

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over 
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as 
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is 
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn 
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. 

Borrowings are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference 
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration 
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 
12 months after the reporting period. 

 
Lease liabilities 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Within one year 148,399 187,255 
Later than one year but not later than five years 410,104 412,272 
Later than five years 325,213  354,988 
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 December (1) 883,716 954,515 
Lease liabilities included in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 754,997 828,171 
Current  145,255 178,568 
Non-current 609,742 649,603 

 

(1) Lease terms range from 1 to 21 years, with the assumption that all options will be taken up. The average lease term option is 5 years. The weighted 
average incremental borrowing rate applied is 4.61%.  

Variable rent payments not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities listed above was $46,477,000 for the year ended 31 
December 2022 (2021: $26,413,000). Variable rent payments relate to advertising revenue booked onto sites. 

 
Lease liability rollforward 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 
Balance as at 1 January 828,171 804,551 
Additions to lease liabilities 126,932 153,451 
Payments (125,110) (91,863) 
Derecognition of lease liabilities (107,449) (72,632) 
Interest for the year 33,382 34,680 
Effect of movements of exchange rates (929) (16) 
As at 31 December 754,997 828,171 

 
 
Accounting policy: Interest bearing lease liabilities 

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The lease liability is initially 
measured at the present value of the lease payments at the commencement date, discounted using the Group’s incremental 
borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability (recognised in Finance costs on 
the income statement) and decreased by lease payments made.  

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the consideration for a lease, that was not part of its original terms and 
conditions. Common lease modifications include, for example: increasing the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or 
more underlying assets; decreasing the scope of the lease by removing the right to use one or more underlying assets or shortening 
the contractual lease term; increasing the scope of the lease by extending the contractual lease term; and changing the 
consideration in the lease by increasing or decreasing the lease payments. Changes that result from renegotiations and changes to 
the terms of the original contract are lease modifications. Changes in the assessment of whether an extension option is reasonably 
certain to be exercised is a lease modification and the Group has applied judgement to determine whether it is reasonably certain 
to exercise an extension option.  
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When the right to use one or more underlying assets is removed, a corresponding adjustment is made to decrease the carrying 
amount of the lease liabilities to reflect the lease modification. The Group shall then recognise in profit or loss (if any) relating to the 
termination of the lease and making corresponding adjustments to the right-of-use asset.  

 

19.  Trade and other payables 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Trade payables 2,096 6,039 
Accrued expenses 35,209 31,974 
Contract liability 10,031 7,936 
Other payables 2,600 4,192 
Total trade and other payables 49,936 50,141 

 
Information about the Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risks is included in Note 24 Financial risk management.  
     
Accounting policy: Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year, which are 
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Contract liabilities are recognised within 
trade payables where invoices are issued in advance of the period in which the revenue is earned.  

       

20. Provisions 

Provisions     
 Make good  Other  Total 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 

2022    
Balance as at 1 January 2022 14,952 306 15,258 
Provisions used during the year (310) (219) (529) 
Provisions made during the year 341 42 383 
Provisions remeasured during the year (3,091) (129) (3,220) 
Effects of movement in exchange rates (48) - (48) 
As at 31 December 2022 11,844 - 11,844 

    
Current provisions 3,420 - 3,420 
Non-current provisions 8,424 - 8,424 
As at 31 December 11,844 - 11,844 

    
2021  
Current provisions 934 306 1,240 
Non-current provisions 14,018 - 14,018 
As at 31 December 14,952 306 15,258 

 
 
Accounting policy: Make good provisions 

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost. 

A make good provision is recognised for the costs of restoration or removal in relation to plant and equipment and site leases where 
there is a legal or constructive obligation. The provision is initially recorded when a reliable estimate can be determined and 
discounted to present value. The unwinding of the effect of discounting on the provision is recognised as a finance cost. At the time 
of initial recognition of the make good provision, a corresponding asset is recognised as part of plant and equipment. During 
subsequent remeasurement, any reassessment to the make good provision is adjusted to plant, property and equipment. 

 

21.  Derivative assets and liabilities 

 
31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 

 $'000 $'000 
Interest rate derivative asset/ (liabilities) 5,466 (5,102) 
Total derivative asset / (liabilities) 5,466 (5,102) 

  
Information about the fair value of derivative instruments is included in Note 23 Fair values.     
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22. Capital and reserves  
 
a) Contributed equity 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 number number $'000 $'000 

Opening balance as at 1 January 598,645,873 591,788,280 886,468 876,291 
Employee bonus shares - 6,857,593 - 10,177 
Share buyback (17,561,913) - (22,364) - 
Issued and paid up share capital 581,083,960 598,645,873 864,104 886,468 
Weighted average number of shares 595,353,161 597,345,945   

 
 
Ordinary shares 

The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued shares. All issued shares are fully paid. The holders 
of these shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general 
meetings of the Company. 

 
b) Reserves 

 
Nature and purpose of reserves 

 
 

31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Foreign currency translation reserve (988) 794 
Other equity reserve 16,608 16,608 
Cash flow hedge reserve 2,067 (3,675) 
Share based payments reserve 15,798 11,789 
Total reserves 33,485 25,516 

 

Foreign currency translation reserve - The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of 
the financial statements of foreign operations in New Zealand. Refer to Note 3 Significant accounting policies.  

           
Other equity reserve - The other equity reserve mostly represents the difference between the issued capital in Outdoor Media 
Investments Limited (OMI) and the consideration paid to acquire OMI on 18 December 2014. The transaction was accounted for as a 
common control transaction as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014. The other 
equity reserve reflects the share price movements for former OMI owners who remained as oOh!media Limited (OML) owners.  

     
Cash flow hedge reserve - The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of 
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition in profit or loss as the hedged cash flows affect profit 
or loss. Refer to Note 23 Fair values.  

     
Share-based payments reserve - The share-based payments reserve is used to record the value of share-based payments provided 
to employees as part of their remuneration and the expense relating to cancelled shares under the legacy share-based payments 
plan. The current balance relates to unexercised rights issued to senior executives and managers. A portion of this reserve may be 
reversed against contributed equity if the underlying rights are exercised and results in shares being issued.  

 
c) Non-controlling interest (NCI) 

 
31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 

Non-controlling interest $'000 $'000 
Balance at 1 January (905) (905) 
Share of operating profit/(loss) for the period after income tax -  - 
Balance at 31 December                        (905)                        (905) 
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d) Equity - dividends 

 Amount per share cents Total value ($) 
Dividends paid during 2022 (1)   
Interim 2022 dividend 1.50 8,935,744 
Final 2021 dividend 1.00 5,986,459 
Total reserves  14,922,203    

   
Dividends paid during 2021   
Interim 2021 dividend - - 
Final 2020 dividend - - 
Total reserves  -            

 

(1) All dividends were fully franked.  

After the reporting date, a final dividend of 3.0 cents per qualifying ordinary share amounting to $17,433,000 has been declared by 
the Board of directors. The dividends have not been recognised as liabilities and there are no tax consequences in 2022.  

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Adjusted franking account balance 60,599 49,576 
Impact on franking account balance of dividends proposed after the reporting date but not 
recognised as a liability (7,471) (2,566) 

Franking credits available to shareholders of the Company for subsequent financial years based on a 
tax rate of 30% 53,128 47,010 

 
 
The ability to utilise franking credits is dependent upon the ability to declare dividends. In accordance with the tax consolidation 
legislation, the Company, as the head entity in the tax-consolidated group, has assumed the benefit of the $53,128,000 (2021: 
$47,010,000) franking credits. 

 
e) Capital management policy 

The Board's policy is to retain a strong capital base relative to normal trading conditions including media advertising industry cycles 
to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of share capital, 
retained earnings and the non-controlling interest of the Group. 

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the 
advantages and security afforded by a capital position.  

 
Accounting policy: Share capital 

Ordinary shares 

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity. Income tax relating 
to transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with AASB 112 Income Taxes.  

 

23. Fair values  
 
Accounting classifications and fair values 

 
a) Fair values vs carrying amounts 

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities equals the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position. The fair value 
of interest rate derivatives is determined as the present value of future contracted cash flows and credit adjustments. 

b) Interest rates used for determining fair value 

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, where applicable, are based on the government yield curve at the end of 
the reporting period plus an appropriate credit spread, and were as follows:  
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 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
Interest rate derivatives 1.8% - 2.8% 1.8% - 2.8% 
Bank loan interest calculated as BBSY + margin 2.065% - 5.5647%   2.01% - 2.885% 
Leases 1.45% - 9.78% 2.45% - 5.09% 

 
 
c) Fair values hierarchy 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 
follows: 

a) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
b) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as 

prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 
c) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

 
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by the levels in the fair value hierarchy. The different levels have 
been defined as below. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value 
if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

Consolidated 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 Carrying 

value Level 2 Level 3 Carrying 
value Level 2 Level 3 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Financial liabilities measured at fair value       
Interest rate derivatives 5,466 5,466 - (5,102) (5,102) - 
Interest rate derivatives assets / (liabilities) 5,466 5,466 - (5,102) (5,102) - 

 
 
d) Valuation techniques         

The fair value of Level 2 interest rate derivatives is determined as the present value of future contracted cash flows and credit 
adjustments. Cash flows are discounted using standard valuation techniques at the applicable market yield, having regard to the 
timing of the cash flows. 

 

24. Financial risk management  
 
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group uses derivative financial instruments such 
as interest rate swaps to hedge certain risk exposures. Derivatives are exclusively used for hedging purposes, i.e., not as trading or 
other speculative instruments. The Group uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These 
methods include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rates, foreign exchange and other price risks and aging analysis for credit 
risk. 

 
(a) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. 

 
i) Management of credit risk 

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and 
deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to agency and direct clients, including outstanding receivables and committed 
transactions. The interest rate derivative financial instruments are contracted with credit worthy counterparties that are large banks, 
primarily members of the Group’s syndicated debt facility. 

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk because the advertising agencies carry the majority of customer default 
risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of media and services are made to customers with appropriate credit 
histories based on enquires through the Group’s credit department. Ongoing customer credit performance is monitored on a regular 
basis. 

Under the Company’s leasing arrangements financial guarantees are given to certain parties. Such guarantees are provided under 
the Group’s banking facilities. 
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ii) Cash and cash equivalents 

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of $40,048,000 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: $60,048,000). The cash and 
cash equivalents are held with credit worthy counterparties that are large banks, primarily members of the Group’s syndicated debt 
facility. 

iii) Derivatives 

Interest rate derivatives are subject to credit risk in relation to the relevant counterparties, which are large banks and members of the 
Group’s syndicated debt facility. The credit risk on derivative contracts is limited to the net amount to be received from 
counterparties on contracts that are favourable to the consolidated entity. 

 
iv) Exposure to credit risk 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the 
reporting date was: 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Cash and cash equivalents 40,048 60,048 
Trade receivables 113,043 98,652 
Contract assets 9,510 19,160 
Other receivables 1 1,175 
Total financial assets 162,602                    179,035  

 

v) Receivables 

The aging of trade receivables at the end of the reporting date that were not impaired was as follows: 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Neither past due nor impaired 110,141 94,521 
Past due 0-30 days 1,264 1,510  
Past due 31-60 days 336 702  
Past due 61-90 days 180 416  
Past due 91+ days 1,122 1,503  
Trade receivables  113,043                     98,652  

 
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows: 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Balance at 1 January 1,145 1,025 
Impairment loss recognised 488 745  
Amounts written off (489) (625) 
Balance at 31 December 1,144                        1,145  

 
Other than those receivables specifically considered in the above allowance for impairment, the Group does not believe there is a 
material credit quality issue with the remaining trade receivables balance. 

 
(b) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that, as far as possible, 
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.  

 
i) Management of liquidity risk 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring 
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 
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ii) Financing arrangements 

The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting date: 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 
   
Facility 350,000 350,000 
Less: bank debt 75,000 125,000 
Less: bank guarantees 36,380 33,676 
Undrawn revolving facility 238,620                     191,324  

 
In June 2022, the Group refinanced its debt facility of $350,000,000 loan over 4 years to June 2026. Drawn debt remained unchanged 
and transactional costs associated with the refinance are being amortised over the length of the loan. In accordance with AASB 9, 
the refinance is considered as non-substantial and the remaining amortised costs of the prior loan arrangement remain recognised 
within the consolidated statement of financial position.

 
iii) Maturities of financial liabilities 

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities, net and gross settled derivative financial instruments in relevant maturity 
groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table 
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. For interest rate derivatives, the cash flows have been estimated using forward interest 
rates applicable at the reporting date.

 2022 
 Carrying 

amount 
Contractual 

cash flows 
12 months or 

less 
Greater than 1 

year 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Non-derivatives     
Bank debt 75,000 (95,020) (4,449) (90,571) 
Lease liabilities 754,997 (954,515) (155,580) (798,935) 
Trade and other payables 49,936 (49,936) (49,936) - 
Total non-derivatives 879,933 (1,099,471) (209,965) (889,506) 

     
Derivatives     
Interest rate derivatives used for hedging (5,466) 5,589 1,961 3,636 

     
     
 2021 

 Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cash flows 

12 months or 
less 

Greater than 1 
year 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Non-derivatives     
Bank debt 125,000 (134,346) (4,673) (129,673) 
Lease liabilities 828,171 (954,515) (155,580) (798,935) 
Trade and other payables 50,141 (50,141) (50,141) - 
Total non-derivatives 1,003,312 (1,139,002) (210,394) (928,608) 

     
Derivatives     
Interest rate derivatives used for hedging (5,102) 5,915 4,079 1,836 

 
The contractual cashflows for the bank debt includes commitment fees for undrawn debt and fees for active bank guarantees. 
The Group's banking facilities loan agreement includes a change of control clause that triggers a review in the event of a change of 
control. The banking syndicate could cancel the facility as a result of such review. As at 31 December 2022 balance date, no 
change of control event is anticipated and therefore the bank debt is assessed as non-current in line with the existing maturity dates 
of the facility. 
 
 
(c) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the 
Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and 
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 

 
i) Management of currency risk 

The Group operates in New Zealand and therefore is exposed to foreign exchange transaction risks with respect to the New Zealand 
dollar. Foreign exchange transaction risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are 
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denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency and through net investments in foreign operations. The risk is 
measured using cash flow forecasting. The Group has an accounting exposure to movements in the AUD/NZD exchange rate in 
consolidating the NZD net assets of oOh!media Street Furniture New Zealand, and its subsidiaries at each balance date. Any such 
movements are booked to the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve (FCTR). 

Based on the exposure, the Group has not deemed it necessary to hedge this exposure in the period or the prior period.  

 
ii) Interest rate risk 

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable interest rates expose the Group to 
cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. 

The Group’s interest rate policy is to fix estimated interest rate risk exposure at a minimum of 50% for a period of at least 12 months or 
as otherwise determined by the Board. 

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating to fixed interest rate derivatives. Such interest rate derivatives have 
the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Generally, the Group raises long-term borrowings at 
floating rates and hedges them into fixed rates using a mixture of swaps and options. Under the interest rate derivatives, the Group 
agrees with other parties to exchange, monthly or quarterly, the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest 
amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts. 

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of 
the Group was as follows:

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Fixed rate instruments   
Financial liabilities (1) 754,997 828,171 
Variable rate instruments   
Financial assets (2) 40,048 60,048 
Financial liabilities (3) 75,000 125,000 

 
(1) Fixed rate instruments are leases 
(2) Financial assets are cash 
(3) Financial liabilities are borrowings 

 

Cash flow hedges 

The amounts at the reporting date relating to items designated as hedged items were as follows:  

 Change in value used for calculating hedge 
ineffectiveness 

 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 
Interest rate risk $'000 $'000 
Variable rate instruments 10,568 13,233 

 See also Note 23 Fair Values where we have stated the designated portion of the derivative and see contractual cash flows on 
profile and timing of interest rate derivatives. 

In accordance with AASB 9 Financial Instruments, there has been a rebalancing of the interest rate derivative (hedging instrument). 
During 2022 oOh!media made debt repayments on the hedged item in March, August and December totaling $50,000,000. 
$75,000,000 of the hedging instrument remains effective, with $75,000,000 designated as ineffective.  

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and hedge ineffectiveness are as follows: 

 

 31-Dec-22 During the period - 2022 
 Carrying amount Changes in 

the value of 
the hedging 

instrument 
recognised 

in the OCI 

Hedge 
ineffectiveness 

recognised in 
profit and loss 

 Nominal amount Assets Liabilities 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Interest rate derivatives 75,000 5,466 - 8,202 2,366 

 

 

74 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2022

  



 

iii) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit or loss by 
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables and foreign currency rates remain constant. The analysis was 
performed on the same basis as 2021. 

 2022 
 Profit or loss Equity 
 100 BP 

increase 
100 BP 

decrease 
100 BP 

increase 
100 BP 

decrease 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Variable rate instruments (750) 750 (750) 750 
Interest rate derivatives -  -  1,500 (1,500) 
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (750) 750 750 (750) 
 

2021 
 Profit or loss Equity 
 100 BP 

increase 
100 BP 

decrease 
100 BP 

increase 
100 BP 

decrease 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Variable rate instruments (1,250) 1,250 (1,250) 1,250 
interest rate derivatives - - 1,500 (1,500) 
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (1,250) 1,250 250 (250) 

 
 
Accounting policy: Financial instruments 

 
(a) Initial recognition and measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognised when they are originated. Other financial assets/liabilities are 
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price. Financial assets / liabilities are initially measured at fair value 
(together with any transaction costs which are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, or cost of the liability). 

 
Classification and subsequent remeasurement 

Three principal classification categories for financial assets exist: 

i) measured through amortised cost; 
ii) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and 
iii) fair value to the consolidated statement of profit or loss (FVTPL). 

Financial assets are classified according to the business model in which the asset is managed and according to its contractual cash 
flow characteristics. They will not subsequently be reclassified unless the Group changes its business model for managing financial 
assets. If the business model changes, all financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the reporting period after which the 
change took place. 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect 
contractual cash flows and contractual terms give rise to cash flows of principal and interest on specific dates. When assessing 
whether cash flows represent solely principal and interest, the Group considers factors which may affect the timing and amount of 
the cash flows, such as contingent events, contractual terms and prepayment or extensions features. 

All derivative financial assets are measured as FVTPL. At inception, the Group may also irrevocably designate that a financial asset 
be measured as FVTPL, even though it would otherwise be measured as amortised cost or FVOCI, if such an election eliminates (or 
significantly reduces) an accounting mismatch which would otherwise occur. 

Subsequent 
remeasurement of Remeasured at Gains / Losses Other considerations 

Financial assets at 
FVTPL Fair value Profit or loss Does not apply to hedging 

instruments (refer to (d) below) 
Financial assets at 

amortised cost 
Amortised cost using the 
effective interest method Profit or loss Amortised cost is reduced by 

any impairment losses 
Financial liabilities at 

FVTPL Fair value Profit or loss Does not apply to hedging 
instruments (refer to (d) below) 

Financial liabilities at 
amortised cost 

Amortised cost using the 
effective interest method Profit or loss - 
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(b) Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The Group will de-recognise a financial asset when any of the following occur: 

- expiration of the contractual right to receive cash flow from the asset; or 
- a transaction occurs which results in the Group transferring substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset 

and therefore it also transfers the right to receive cash flows from the asset; or 
- although the Group does not transfer the risks and rewards of ownership, it no longer retains control of the asset. 

 

Financial liabilities 

The Group will derecognise a financial liability when any of the following occur: 

- contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire; or 
- the terms are modified, such that the cash flows are also modified. In this situation, a new financial liability would be 

recognised, at fair value, based on the modified terms. 

 
(c) Offsetting 

 
The Group may only offset financial assets and liabilities (or present them on a net basis) in circumstances where there is a legally 
enforceable right to do so and the Group intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis, or simultaneously. 

 
(d) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 
 
The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk exposure. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. 
Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in OCI. 
 
The Group designates certain instruments as cash flow hedges to minimise the variability in cash flows associated with highly 
probable forecast transactions arising from changes in interest rates. 
 
The risk management objective and strategy for undertaking a hedge, are documented at the inception of the hedging relationship. 
The Group also documents the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument (including whether the 
changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are expected to offset). 
 
The accounting policy for cash flow hedges is as follows: 
 

- When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the 
derivative is recognised in OCI and accumulated in the hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair 
value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

- The amount accumulated in equity is retained in OCI and reclassified to profit or loss in the same period or periods during 
which the hedged item affects profit or loss. 

 
If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the 
designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to 
occur, then the amount accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. 
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25. List of subsidiaries and equity accounted investees 
 

(a) Subsidiaries and equity accounted investees 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in accordance with the 
accounting policy described in Note 3(a): 

   Ownership % 
Name of entity  Country of 

incorporation 
2022 2021 

Outdoor Media Operations Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Group Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Street Furniture Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Operations Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Produce Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Assets Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Factor Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Digital Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Retail Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Lifestyle Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Shop Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Roadside Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media MEP Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Regional Pty Ltd   Australia 100% 100% 
Red Outdoor Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Closebuys Pty Limited  Australia 83% 83% 
oOh!media Café Screen Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Corp Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Corp Australia Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Fly Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Drive Sydney Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Outdoor Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Mall Media Pty Limited   Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Drive Melbourne Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Study Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Outdoor Plus Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Shop Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Homemaker Media Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Office Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Inlink Office Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Inlink Café Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Inlink Fitness Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Executive Channel International Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Executive Channel Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
InTheMix dot com dot au Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Thought By Them Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Qjump Australia Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Faster Louder Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Sound Alliance Nominees Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Cactus Imaging Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Cactus Holdings Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Locate Pty Ltd           Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Street Furniture New Zealand Limited  New Zealand 100% 100% 
oOh!media New Zealand Limited   New Zealand 100% 100% 
oOh!media Retail New Zealand Limited  New Zealand 100% 100% 
oOh!media Study New Zealand Limited  New Zealand 100% 100% 
Calibre Audience Measurement Limited  New Zealand 33.3% 50% 

 
 

26. Capital commitments 
 
The Group entered into contracts to purchase plant and equipment in 2022 for $17,721,000 (2021: $10,525,000). 
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27. Contingencies 
 
Contingent liabilities

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Bank guarantees (1)  36,584 33,676 
Bank guarantees 36,584                    33,676  

 
(1) Bank guarantees of $204,000 are not included in and do not form part of the debt facility per note 24. 

 
Bank Guarantees are issued to lessors as part of the groups commercial lease obligations.  

 
Contingent liability: Deductibility of historic upfront payments creating an uncertain tax position 

Prior to the acquisition of Adshel in September 2018, Adshel management had negotiated $21,000,000 of upfront payments for street 
furniture contracts with two metro councils. The Company treated these payments as deductible when paid. For accounting 
purposes, the payments are being amortised over the terms of the contracts. The Company has recognised deferred tax liabilities for 
the unamortised balances. The Australian Taxation Office (ATO) has formed a view that the payments may be capital in nature and 
not deductible and has commenced an audit of the Company’s tax treatment. The Company has obtained specialist tax advice 
and believes its current tax treatment is correct. The Company has engaged legal advisors and will defend its position. If the 
Company is unsuccessful, the Company would be required to raise $6,300,000 as a current tax liability and may be exposed to 
penalties and interest. At 31 December 2022 the deferred tax liability related to upfront payments is $4,712,000. This matter is not 
expected to be resolved until late into 2023 or beyond. 

 
Contingent assets 

During 2019, the Group was advised by Transport for NSW that certain sites in the Sydney Airport Precinct would be permanently 
removed as part of the Sydney Gateway Project. In 2020, Transport for NSW compulsorily acquired those sites. The Group has 
recorded a receivable based on the Valuer General’s determination of compensation. The Group appealed to the Land and 
Environment Court and is awaiting the Court’s determination of compensation.

 

28. Related parties  
 
(a) Parent entity and ultimate controlling party 

As at 31 December 2022, the parent entity of the Group is oOh!media Limited. 

 
(b) Subsidiaries 

Interest in subsidiaries is set out in Note 25 List of subsidiaries and equity accounted investees. 

 
(c) Transactions with Key Management Personnel 

 
i) Key Management Personnel compensation 

The Key Management Personnel compensation comprised: 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $ $ 

Short term employee benefits 3,207,193 3,374,046 
Termination benefits - -  
Post-employment benefits 118,287 128,607 
Share-based benefits 805,108 375,870  

 4,130,588 3,878,523 

 
 
Key Management Personnel also participate in the Group’s share plans, details of which are discussed in Note 9 Share-based 
payments. 
Included in the above is the Non-executive Director compensation of $1,009,386 (2021: 1,176,348) and the post-employment benefits 
of $66,192 (2021: 69,425). 
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ii) Directors' related party transactions 

Directorships and shareholdings held by former oOh!media Limited's Non-executive Director Marco Hellman gave rise to related 
party arrangements in the current and prior period.  

Marco Hellman is a Founder, Managing Partner & member of the Investment Committee of HMI Capital Management, L.P. HMI 
Capital Management, L.P was a significant shareholder in the Group. Marco Hellman was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 
7 April 2020 and retired as a Director effective 9 April 2022. In June 2020, the Company entered into a consultancy agreement with 
HMI under which the Company could request consultancy services on matters the Company considers are within the expertise of 
HMI. There was no fee payable for services provided under the consultancy agreement. The agreement was terminated when 
Marco retired as a Non-executive Director. 

 To mitigate any potential conflicts arising, there was a Board protocol in place whereby the aforementioned Board member was 
asked to exit a Board meeting should any matters arise that would have impacted their independence. 

 

29. Earnings per share 
 
The table below shows the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for 2022 and 2021. 

   

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Profit / (loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders 31,516 (10,288) 
Net profit / (loss) after income tax attributable to equity holders of the parent 31,516                      (10,288) 

   
 Number of shares 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic   
Opening issued ordinary shares balance 598,645,873 591,788,280 
Employee bonus shares - 5,557,665 
Share buy back (3,292,712) - 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December - basic 595,353,161            597,345,945  

   
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic 595,353,161 597,345,945 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December - basic            595,353,161  597,345,945 

   
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - diluted   
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic 595,353,161 597,345,945 
Effect of performance rights on issue 4,941,319 - 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December - diluted 600,294,480 597,345,945 

   
   
 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 

Basic profit / (loss) earnings per share (cents) 5.3 (1.7) 
Diluted profit / (loss) earnings per share (cents) 5.3 (1.7) 
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30. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 
Cash flows from operating activities   
Profit after income tax for the year 31,516 (10,288) 
Adjustments for: 

  
Depreciation 177,068 183,966 
Amortisation 23,597 25,095 
Hedge ineffectiveness (2,366) 4,723 
Borrowing costs 1,289 1,291 
Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax (11) 90  
Covid-19 Fixed rent abatements (10,850) (13,939) 
Net exchange differences 2,925  (75) 
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions 4,009 673 
                   227,177                   191,536 
Changes in:   
Trade receivables  (13,217) (14,347) 
Deferred tax balances (4,775)  (10,336) 
Other operating assets 11,500  (5,314) 
Trade payables (204)  7,545 
Other provisions (2,496) 231 
Provision for income taxes payable 13,657 7,595 
Other operating liabilities 39,117 30,701 
Cash generated from operating activities                   270,759                   207,611 

 
   
Interest paid (40,232) (48,858) 
Interest received 481 45 
Taxes paid (8,320) (2,717) 
Net cash generated from operating activities 222,688 156,081 

 

Accounting policy: Cash and cash equivalents 

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial 
institutions and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to cash on 
hand and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

 

31. Auditor’s remuneration 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $ $ 

Audit and assurance services   
KPMG Australia   
Audit and review of financial statements 673,770 601,002 
Other assurance services 131,087 171,991  
Total audit and assurance services  804,857 772,993 

   
Other services   
Taxation compliance and advisory services 473,978 213,407  
Total other services 473,978 213,407 
Total auditor's remuneration  1,278,835 986,400 
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32. Parent entity disclosures  
 
As at and throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2022 the parent entity of the Group was oOh!media Limited (2021: 
oOh!media Limited).  

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

(a) Financial position   

Financial position of parent entity at year end   
Current assets 99,641 141,576 
Non-current assets 888,140 910,504 
Total asset 987,781 1,052,080 
Current liabilities 22,884 9,227 
Non-current liabilities 72,536 137,879 
Total liabilities 95,420 147,106 
Net assets                   892,361                    904,974  

   
Total equity of parent entity comprising of:   
Contributed equity 864,104 886,468 
Reserves 28,257 18,506 
Total equity                   892,361                    904,974  

   
(b) Comprehensive income   

Result of parent entity   
Profit for the year:   
Dividends received from subsidiary 14,922 - 
Other comprehensive income 5,742 5,957 
Total comprehensive income for the year                     20,664                       5,957  

 
(c) Parent entity capital commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment 

The parent entity did not have any capital commitments for the acquisition of property, plant or equipment as at 31 December 2022 
(2021: Nil). 

 
(d) Guarantees and contingent liabilities 

Please refer to Note 27 for information on the guarantees and contingent liabilities of the parent entity. 

 

33. Deed of cross guarantee 
 
On 20 April 2018, the wholly owned subsidiaries listed below entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee with oOh!media Limited in 
accordance with ASIC Corporations (Wholly Owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785 thereby relieving them from the Corporations 
Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit and lodgement of financial reports, and Directors’ reports.  

The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt of the others.  

The subsidiaries subject to the Deed are:  
 
Outdoor Media Operations Pty Limited 
oOh!media Group Pty Limited 
oOh!media Operations Pty Limited 
oOh!media Produce Pty Limited 
oOh!media Assets Pty Limited 
oOh!media Factor Pty Limited 
oOh!media Digital Pty Limited 
oOh!media Locate Pty Limited 
oOh!media Retail Pty Limited 
oOh!media Lifestyle Pty Limited 
oOh!media Shop Pty Limited 
oOh!media Roadside Pty Limited 
oOh!media MEP Pty Limited 
oOh!media Regional Pty Limited 
Red Outdoor Pty Ltd 
Eye Corp Pty Limited 
Eye Corp Australia Pty Limited 
oOh!media Fly Pty Limited 
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Eye Drive Sydney Pty Limited 
Eye Outdoor Pty Limited 
Eye Mall Media Pty Limited 
Eye Drive Melbourne Pty Limited 
oOh!media Study Pty Limited 
Outdoor Plus Pty Limited 
Eye Shop Pty Limited 
Homemaker Media Pty Limited 
oOh!media Office Pty Limited 
Inlink Office Pty Ltd 
Inlink Café Pty Ltd 
Inlink Fitness Pty Ltd 
Executive Channel International Pty Ltd 
Executive Channel Pty Ltd 
Cactus Imaging Holdings Pty Limited 
Cactus Imaging Pty Limited 
oOh!media Café Screen Pty Limited 
oOh!media Street Furniture Limited  
Faster Louder Pty Limited (1) 

Thought By Them Pty Ltd (1) 

QJump Australia Pty Limited (1) 

Sound Alliance Nominees Pty Ltd (1) 

Inthemix dot com dot au Pty Ltd (1) 
 

(1) FasterLouder Pty Ltd, Thought By Them Pty Ltd, QJump Australia Pty Ltd, Sound Alliance Nominees Pty Ltd and InTheMix dot com dot au Pty 
Ltd became a party to the Deed on 28 June 2019, by virtue of a Deed of Assumption.  

 
A consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of financial position, 
comprising the Company and controlled entities which are a party to the Deed, after eliminating all transactions between parties to 
the Deed of Cross Guarantee, for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out as follows: 

 
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and retained earnings 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 

Revenue 540,545 453,759 
Cost of sales (145,418) (109,501) 
Gross profit 395,127                   344,258  
Other income 2,136 3,863 
Operating expenses, depreciation and amortisation (320,527) (325,205) 
Finance income  415 (148) 
Finance costs and foreign exchange costs (41,725) (46,102) 
Profit / (loss) before tax  35,426                   (23,334) 
Tax expense (11,782) 7,287 
Profit / (loss) after tax 23,644                    (16,047) 
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax 7,118 3,455 
De-designation of interest rate derivatives to the Consolidated Income Statement, net of tax (1,376) 2,502 
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 5,742                   5,957 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period, net of tax 29,386                    (10,090) 

 
Consolidated statement of financial position 

 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 21 
 $'000 $'000 
Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents  28,532 38,407 
Trade and other receivables  57,002 92,411 
Inventories  5,937 4,234 
Other current assets 14,634 26,149 
Current assets  106,105                     161,201  
Property, plant and equipment  135,000 147,282 
Right of use asset 641,112 710,595 
Intangible assets 653,887 672,917 
Investments 129,152 129,152 
Derivative assets 5,466 - 
Deferred tax asset 2,008 - 
Other non-current assets 3,847 984 
Non-current assets  1,570,472                 1,660,930  
Total assets  1,676,577                 1,822,131  
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Liabilities     
Trade and other payables 44,490 43,591 
Loans and borrowings  - 26,706 
Interest bearing lease liabilities 141,570 175,155 
Provisions  3,117 1,090 
Employee benefits 9,225 7,908 
Income tax payable 20,184 (738) 
Derivative liabilities - 7,266 
Current liabilities  218,586                   260,978  
Loans and borrowings  73,513 124,308 
Provisions  6,975 12,166 
Employee benefits 2,140 2,570 
Interest bearing lease liabilities 599,729 637,161 
Derivative liabilities - 5,102 
Deferred tax liabilities - 1,218 
Non-current liabilities  682,357                    782,525  
Total liabilities  900,943                 1,043,503  
Net assets  775,634                    778,628  

    
Equity     
Share capital  864,104 884,067 
Reserves  34,638 24,690 
Minority interest 10 10 
Accumulated losses (123,118) (130,139) 
Total equity  775,634                    778,628 

  
 
 

34. Subsequent events 
 
Since the end of the financial year, and after the approval of these consolidated financial statements, the Board has declared a fully 
franked dividend of 3.0 cents per ordinary share, amounting to $17,433,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 (31 
December 2021: $5,986,000). This dividend is payable on 23 March 2023. The financial effect of this dividend has not been brought to 
account in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 and will be recognised in subsequent 
financial reports.  

No other matter or circumstance at the date of this report has arisen since 31 December 2022 that has significantly affected or may 
affect: 

(a)  the operations of the Group; 

(b)  the results of those operations in future financial years; or  

(c)  the Group's state of affairs in the future financial years. 
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 In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of oOh!media Limited (‘the Company’), we state that:

1. In the Directors opinion:

 a)  the consolidated financial statements and notes of the Group that are set out on pages 46 to 83, for the year ended 
31 December 2022, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), including:

  i.  giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2022 and of its performance for the year 
ended on that date; and

  ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 (Cth); and

 b)  there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become 
due and payable.

2.  There are reasonable grounds to believe that oOh!media Limited and the controlled entities will be able to meet any obligations 
or liabilities to which they are or may become subject to by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee between oOh!media Limited 
and those controlled entities pursuant to ASIC Corporations (Wholly-owned companies) instrument 2016/785 (Instrument).

3.  The Directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) from the Chief 
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer for the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

4.  The Directors draw attention to Note 2(a) to the consolidated financial statements, which includes a statement of compliance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

On behalf of the Board

Tony Faure 
Chairman 
20 February 2023 
Sydney

Directors’ 
Declaration
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Independent Auditor’s Report  

To the shareholders of oOh!media Limited 

Report on the audit of the Financial Report 

Report on the audit of the Financial Report 

Opinion 

We have audited the Financial Report of 
oOh!media Limited (the Company). 

In our opinion, the accompanying 
Financial Report of the Company is in 
accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001, including:  

• giving a true and fair view of the 
Group’s financial position as at 31 
December 2022 and of its financial 
performance for the year ended on 
that date; and 

• complying with Australian Accounting 
Standards and the Corporations 
Regulations 2001. 

The Financial Report comprises:  
 
• Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 

December 2022 

• Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, Consolidated statement of 
changes in equity, and Consolidated statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended 

• Notes including a summary of significant accounting 
policies 

• Directors’ Declaration. 

The Group consists of the Company and the entities it 
controlled at the year-end or from time to time during 
the financial year. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for 
the audit of the Financial Report section of our report.  

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our 
audit of the Financial Report in Australia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements.  
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Key Audit Matters 

The Key Audit Matters we identified are: 

• Lease accounting 

• Recoverable amount of goodwill 

 

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgement, were of most significance in 
our audit of the Financial Report of the current period.  

These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the Financial Report as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 

Leases accounting 

Refer to Notes 13 and 18 to the Financial Report 

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

The accounting requirements of AASB 16 Leases 
(AASB 16) are inherently complex, where specific 
and individualised lease-features drive different 
accounting outcomes, increasing the need for 
interpretation and judgement. This increases our 
audit effort and is a key audit matter. We focused 
on: 
• High volume of leases – the Group has a high 

volume of individualised lease agreements 
required to be assessed in determining the 
lease liability and right-of-use asset. A focus 
for us was the completeness of the lease 
population and the accuracy of multiple and 
varied inputs which may drive different 
accounting outcomes, including key terms of 
the lease agreements, such as key dates, 
fixed rent payments, renewal options and 
incentives. 

• Complex modelling process – the Group 
developed an AASB 16 lease calculation 
model, which is largely manual and complex, 
and therefore is at greater risk for potential 
error and inconsistent application. 

• Relative magnitude – the size of balances has 
a significant financial impact on the Group’s 
financial position and performance. 

The most significant areas of judgement we focus 
on was in assessing the Group’s: 

• Incremental borrowing rates used – these are 
meant to reflect the Group’s entity specific 
credit risk and vary based on each lease term. 
The Group engaged an external expert to 
assist with determining each of the Group’s 

Our procedures included: 

• We considered the appropriateness of the 
Group’s accounting policies against the 
requirements of the accounting standard 
and our understanding of the business and 
industry practice. 

• We obtained an understanding of the 
Group’s processes used to calculate the 
lease liability, right-of-use asset, 
depreciation and interest expense. 

• We assessed the completeness of the 
Group’s leases by checking actual lease 
payments throughout the period against 
expected lease payments per the Group’s 
AASB 16 lease calculation model. 

• We compared the Group’s inputs in the 
AASB 16 lease calculation model, such as, 
key dates, fixed rent payments, renewal 
options and incentives, for consistency to 
the relevant terms of a sample of 
underlying signed lease agreements. 

• We assessed the Group’s estimate of 
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise 
lease renewal options.  We compared key 
management decisions for consistency to 
board approved plans, strategies and past 
practices.  

• We assessed the scope, competency and 
objectivity of the external expert engaged 
by the Group to assist determining the 
Group’s incremental borrowing rates.  We 
checked key inputs into the incremental 
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incremental borrowing rates. 

• Lease terms where leases have renewal 
options – assessing the Group’s estimate of 
whether it is reasonably certain renewal 
options will be exercised impacts the 
measurement of the lease, therefore is 
important to the accuracy of the accounting. 

During the financial year, the Group negotiated a 
number of rent abatements with lessors. The 
Group applied the practical expedient issued by 
the IASB in May 2020 and extension in March 
2021, where applicable, and the assessment of 
whether individual rent abatements met the 
criteria of the practical expedient required 
additional audit effort in the current year. 

We involved our senior audit team members in 
assessing these areas. 

borrowing rate to published authoritative 
sources. 

• Working with our modelling specialists, we 
assessed the integrity of the Group’s 
AASB 16 lease calculation model used, 
including the accuracy of the underlying 
calculation formulas.  

• We tested a sample of rent abatements to 
signed lease modifications with the lessors 
and assessed against the requirements of 
the practical expedient in the accounting 
standards. 

• We assessed the disclosures in the 
financial report using our understanding 
obtained from our testing and against the 
requirements of the accounting standard. 

 

Recoverable amount of goodwill ($607 million) 

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the Financial Report 

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

The Group’s annual testing of goodwill for 
impairment is a key audit matter, given the size 
of the balance (being 35% of total assets) and 
the degree of judgement applied by the Group.  
We focused on the significant forward-looking 
assumptions the Group applied in its 
discounted cash flow models (“DCF models”), 
including: 

• Forecast cash flows – the Group has 
experienced uncertainty around future cash 
flows due to the short term, non-recurring 
nature of customer contracts, as well as a 
heightened uncertainty due to volatile 
economic conditions caused by supply 
chain issues affecting the Group’s 
customers and rising interest rates. These 
conditions increase the risk of inaccurate 
forecasts or a significantly wider range of 
possible outcomes for us to consider. 

• Forecast growth rates, including long-term 
growth rates into perpetuity – in addition to 
the uncertainties described above, the 
Group’s DCF models are sensitive to small 

Working with our valuation specialists, our 
procedures included: 

• We considered the appropriateness of the fair 
value less costs of disposal method applied by 
the Group to perform the annual test of 
goodwill for impairment against the 
requirements of the accounting standards. 

• We assessed the integrity of the DCF models 
used, including the accuracy of the underlying 
calculation formulas. 

• We compared the forecast cash flows 
contained in the DCF models to Board 
approved forecasts. 

• We assessed the accuracy of previous Group 
forecasts to inform our evaluation of forecasts 
incorporated in the DCF models.  

• We assessed the Group’s underlying 
methodology for the allocation of corporate 
costs to the forecast cash flows contained in 
the DCF models, for consistency with our 
understanding of the business and the criteria 
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changes in these assumptions, reducing 
available headroom. This drives additional 
audit effort specific to their feasibility and 
consistency of application to the Group’s 
strategy. 

• Discount rate – these are complex in nature 
and vary according to the conditions and 
environment the specific Cash Generating 
Unit (CGU) is subject to from time to time.  
We involved our valuations specialists with 
this assessment.   

The Group uses complex DCF models to 
perform their annual testing of goodwill for 
impairment.  The DCF models are largely 
manually developed, use adjusted historical 
performance, and a range of internal and 
external sources as inputs to the assumptions. 
Complex modelling, including judgemental 
allocations of corporate assets and costs to 
CGUs, using forward-looking assumptions tend 
to be prone to greater risk for potential bias, 
error and inconsistent application.  These 
conditions necessitate additional scrutiny by us, 
in particular to address the objectivity of 
sources used for assumptions, and their 
consistent application. 

 

in the accounting standards. 

• We assessed the Group’s allocation of 
corporate assets to CGUs for reasonableness 
and consistency based on the requirements of 
the accounting standards. 

• We considered the Group’s determination of 
their CGUs based on our understanding of the 
operations of the Group’s business and how 
independent cash inflows were generated 
against the requirements of the accounting 
standards. 

• Working with our valuation specialists, we 
challenged the Group’s significant forecast 
cash flow and growth assumptions in light of 
the expected continuation of volatile economic 
conditions caused by supply chain issues 
affecting the Group’s customers and rising 
interest rates.  We assessed how the Group 
had considered the impacts of these events in 
the Board-approved plan and strategy. We 
compared forecast growth rates and long-term 
growth rates into perpetuity to published 
studies of industry trends and expectations 
and considered differences for the Group’s 
operations. We used our knowledge of the 
Group, their past performance, business and 
customers, and our industry experience.   

• Working with our valuation specialists, we 
independently developed a discount rate 
range using publicly available market data for 
comparable entities, adjusted by risk factors 
specific to the Group and the industry it 
operates in. 

• We considered the sensitivity of the DCF 
models by varying key assumptions, such as 
forecast growth rates, long-term growth rates 
into perpetuity and discount rates, within a 
reasonably possible range. We did this to 
identify any CGU at higher risk of impairment 
and those assumptions at a higher risk of bias 
or inconsistency in application and to focus 
our further procedures. 

• We assessed the Group’s reconciliation of 
differences between the year-end market 
capitalisation and the carrying amount of the 
net assets by comparing the implicit earnings 
multiples from the DCF models to market 
multiples of comparable entities. 

• We assessed the disclosures in the financial 
report using our understanding obtained from 
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our testing against the requirements of the 
accounting standards.  

 

Other Information 

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in oOh!media Limited’s annual reporting 
which is provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor’s Report. The Directors are 
responsible for the Other Information. 

Our opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon, with the exception of the 
Remuneration Report and our related assurance opinion. 

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other 
Information. In doing so, we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with 
the Financial Report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other 
Information, and based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained 
prior to the date of this Auditor’s Report we have nothing to report. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report 

The Directors are responsible for: 

• preparing the Financial Report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 

• implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Report that 
gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error 

• assessing the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and whether the 
use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate. This includes disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless they either intend to liquidate the Group and Company or to cease operations, or have 
no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report 

Our objective is: 

• to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and  

• to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of the Financial Report. 
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at: 
https://www.auasb.gov.au/admin/file/content102/c3/ar1_2020.pdf.  This description forms part of our 
Auditor’s Report. 

Report on the Remuneration Report

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report 
of oOh!media Limited for the year ended 
31 December 2022, complies with 
Section 300A of the Corporations Act 
2001. 

Directors’ responsibilities 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the 
preparation and presentation of the Remuneration 
Report in accordance with Section 300A of the 
Corporations Act 2001. 

Our responsibilities 

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in 
pages 24 to 43 of the Directors’ Report for the year 
ended 31 December 2022.  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. 

KPMG Kristen Peterson 

Partner 

Sydney 

20 February 2023 
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Term Meaning/definition

AASB Australian Accounting Standards Board

AGM Annual General Meeting

ASIC Australian Securities and Investments Commission

ASX Australian Securities Exchange, as operated by ASX Limited ABN 98 008 624 691

AUD, A$, $ or Australian dollar The lawful currency of the Commonwealth of Australia

Auditor KPMG

Australian Accounting Standards Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements issued 
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and Urgent Issues Group Interpretations

Board or Board of Directors The board of Directors of oOh!media Limited

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CGU Cash Generating Unit

Company oOh!media Limited ACN 602 195 380

Company Secretary The Company Secretary of oOh!media as appointed from time-to-time

Constitution The constitution of the Company

Corporations Act Corporations Act 2001 (Cth)

CY17 Financial year ended 31 December 2017

CY18 Financial year ended 31 December 2018

CY19 Financial year ended 31 December 2019

CY20 Financial year ended 31 December 2020

CY21 Financial year ended 31 December 2021

CY22 Financial year ended 31 December 2022

Digital revenue Revenue from digital advertising display panels

Director Each of the Directors of oOh!media as appointed to the position from time-to-time

EBIT Earnings before interest and taxation

EBITDA Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation

EPS Earnings Per Share

Escrow An ‘escrow’ is a restriction on sale, disposal or encumbering of, or certain other dealings 
in respect of, the shares concerned for the period of the escrow, subject to exceptions 
set out in the escrow arrangement

FAR Fixed annual remuneration

FCTR Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

FMCG Fast moving consumer goods

Group oOh!media Limited and its subsidiaries

GST Goods and services or similar tax imposed in Australia and New Zealand

IASB International Accounting Standards Board

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

KMP Key Management Personnel

KPI Key Performance Indicator

KPMG KPMG ABN 51 194 660 183
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Term Meaning/definition

Listing The admission of oOh!media to the Official List of the ASX

Listing Rules The Official Listing Rules of ASX

LTI Long term incentive as payable under the LTI Plan

LTI Plan oOh!media’s long-term incentive plan, as amended by oOh!media from time-to-time

Management The management of oOh!media

MD Managing Director

MOVE Measurement of Outdoor Visibility and Exposure, Australia’s national Out of Home 
audience measurement system

n/a Not applicable

NCI Non-controlling Interest

NED Non-executive Director

NPAT Net profit after tax

NPATA Net profit after tax before amortisation of acquired intangibles

NZD New Zealand Dollars

OCI Other Comprehensive Income

OFR Operating and Financial Review

OMA Outdoor Media Association, the peak national industry body that represents most 
of Australia’s traditional and digital outdoor media display companies and production 
facilities, as well as some media display asset owners.

Officer An Officer of the Company

OMI Outdoor Media Investments Limited ABN 32 156 446 187

OML oOh!media Limited ACN 602 195 380

oOh! oOh!media Limited ACN 602 195 380

oOh!media oOh!media Limited ACN 602 195 380

Out of Home Out of Home, also commonly referred to as out of home or outdoor advertising, represents 
the media sector of the advertising industry that communicates with people when they 
are out of their home

Registry Link Market Services Limited ABN 54 083 214 537

Rights  Rights to shares granted pursuant to the LTI Plan

Senior Executive The senior executive management of oOh!media

Share of security A fully paid ordinary share in oOh!media

Share registry Link Market Services Limited ABN 54 083 214 537

Shareholder The registered holder of a Share

SMI Standard Media Index

STI Short term incentive payable under the STI Plan

STI Plan oOh!medi’s short term incentive plan, as amended by oOh!media from time-to-time

TSR Total Shareholder Return

VWAP Volume weighted average price

WHS Workplace health & safety

WHSE&S Work, health, safety, environment & sustainability

WSE Wellbeing, safety & environment
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